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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Good morning.

          3  This is the Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting

          4  and Maritime Uses of the City Council's Committee on

          5  Land Use.  I'm Council Member John Sabini from

          6  Queens, I Chair this panel, the full Land Use

          7  Committee is Chaired by June Eisland of the Bronx.

          8  This Committee does a number of things, particularly

          9  landmarks and public sitings, and we will do both

         10  today.

         11                 We will be hearing items on, at

         12  least, one item confirming a designation or

         13  rejecting a designation, hopefully confirming, of

         14  the Landmarks Commission of a site in Brooklyn, and

         15  we will be hearing a number of public siting issues,

         16  and since we have some students in the room, public

         17  siting means deciding where the City Government will

         18  build something, siting means the verb to site, to

         19  put something someplace, to build something

         20  someplace, and we have a number of those issues

         21  today and one I know you are particularly interested

         22  in.

         23                 So I will read the agenda, we will

         24  probably not do the agenda in the order that I'm

         25  going to read it, but I'm going to read it in the
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          2  order it was printed in, anyway, and I will

          3  introduce the members of the Subcommittee, who are

          4  in attendance as well.

          5                 To my left, your right, from the

          6  Bronx, Council Member Adolfo Carrion, Jr., and to my

          7  right, your left, from Brooklyn, Council Member

          8  Priscilla Wooten, and we are joined by our very able

          9  Land Use staff moving about, including Carol Shine

         10  sitting to my right.

         11                 On the agenda today will be Land Use

         12  531, Brooklyn Community Board #10, a designation by

         13  the Landmarks Preservation Commission of the Bennet-

         14  Farrell- Feldmann House in Brooklyn, in Council

         15  Member Martin Golden's District.

         16                 We will be hearing of related items,

         17  Land Use 539 through 544, and they're all in

         18  Brooklyn Community Board #4, in the District of

         19  Council Member Wendell Foster, and they are related

         20  items from the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice

         21  Coordinator and the Department of City- wide

         22  Administrative Services, and they are related to a

         23  building of a construction of a courthouse and

         24  related facilities in the vicinity of 161st Street

         25  in the Bronx.
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          2                 Land Use 597 in Brooklyn Community

          3  Board #15, an application submitted by the School

          4  Construction Authority for a proposed high school

          5  known as Kingsborough High School for Sciences and

          6  Family College located at Kingsborough Community

          7  College in Brooklyn, in Council Member Nelson's

          8  District, Community Board #15 in Brooklyn.

          9                 Two related items, Land Use 600 and

         10  601, in Queens Community Board #1, in the District

         11  of Council Member Walter L. McCaffrey, and they're

         12  applications by the Department of City- wide

         13  Administrative Services, and the City's Economic

         14  Development Corporation for property acquisition and

         15  disposition in the area around 34th Avenue, 35th

         16  Avenue, 35th Streets and 37th Streets in Long Island

         17  City, Queens.

         18                 There is another item on the agenda

         19  that is not on the printed agenda, but is on an

         20  amended agenda, which we will be reading into the

         21  record, as well, in just a second.  I will take a,

         22  hopefully, one minute recess.

         23                 Back on the record, the amended

         24  agenda would also include Land Use 610 in Brooklyn

         25  Community Board #14, Council Member Noach Dear's
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          2  District, a notice of intent to acquire office space

          3  submitted by the Department of City- wide

          4  Administrative Services, and the use of the property

          5  is not listed, but I think we will hear from them

          6  later what they intend to use the property for, as

          7  we will on the Land Use 600 and 601.

          8                 What I am going to do now is, because

          9  we want to hear, sort of get people out of the

         10  Chamber who have non controversial items, I am going

         11  to first bring up Land Use 531, which is the

         12  designation by the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         13  of the Bennet- Farrell- Feldmann House in Brooklyn,

         14  Community Board #10, Council Member Golden's

         15  District, for a designation as a landmark.  And we

         16  have testimony from Council Member Golden, I don't

         17  know if anyone from his staff is in the room,

         18  otherwise, we will just submit it, and I assume,

         19  without going through this lengthy, Katy McNabb is

         20  here from the Landmarks Commission.  Why don't you

         21  step forward and testify?  And I see part of our

         22  other ensemble cast is here, Roger Lang.  Is there

         23  anyone else here for that item?  No.  Okay, Katy,

         24  why don't you start us off, identify yourself for

         25  the record, please?
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          2                 MS. MCNABB:  Good morning, Council

          3  members.  My name is Katy McNabb, Director of

          4  Community and Government Affairs for the Landmarks

          5  Preservation Commission.  I am here to testify on

          6  the Commission's designation of the Bennet- Farrell-

          7  Feldmann House as a New York City Landmark.

          8                 The Commission held a public hearing

          9  on the designation of the Farrell House on September

         10  18th, 1997.  Twenty witnesses spoke in favor of

         11  designation, including representatives of the

         12  Historic Districts Council, New York Landmarks

         13  Conservancy, Municipal Art Society, Concerned

         14  Citizens of Bay Ridge, the Bay Ridge Historical

         15  Society, and Friends of the Farrell House and Bennet

         16  Barn.  A representative of the owner spoke in

         17  opposition of the designation.

         18                 The Commission also received numerous

         19  letters in support of designation, including

         20  correspondence from Senator Daniel Patrick Moynihan,

         21  Brooklyn Borough President Howard Golden, City

         22  Council Member Martin Golden, and Assemblywoman Joan

         23  Millman. The Commissioner voted to designate the

         24  Bennet- Farrell- Feldmann House as a New York City

         25  Landmark on August 3rd, 1999.
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          2                 Located at 119 95th Street in Bay

          3  Ridge, the Feldmann House is a rare survivor from

          4  the era when fashionable villas line Shore Road

          5  along the bluffs of Bay Ridge.  Built for Joseph S.

          6  Bennet around 1847, the Farrell House was one of

          7  three houses on Shore Road erected by members of the

          8  Bennet family during the 1840s.  The house was moved

          9  to its present location in 1913, but remains within

         10  the grounds of Bennet's original estate.

         11                 A five- bay wide, two and one- half

         12  story frame building, the Farrell House is sheathed

         13  in its original clapboards and features

         14  characteristic Greek Revival details such as

         15  columned front and rear porches and ornate window

         16  and door surrounds.

         17                 As the grandest mid- nineteenth

         18  century house remaining in Southern Brooklyn, the

         19  Farrell House is a rare and exceptionally intact

         20  Greek Revival villa in New York City.  The

         21  Commission urge you to affirm the designation of the

         22  Bennet Farrell- Feldmann House.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Ms.

         24  McNabb.  Just a question from myself, why did the

         25  owner oppose it?
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          2                 MS. MCNABB:  The owner opposed it

          3  because the house is currently for sale, and he felt

          4  that Landmark designation might impede the sale of

          5  the property.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Does he have a

          7  contract for sale, or an agreement for sale?

          8                 MS. MCNABB:  Not as far as I'm aware,

          9  it is still for sale, if anyone is interested?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, questions

         11  from the panel? No, okay, thank you.

         12                 Roger Lang from the New York

         13  Landmarks Conservancy. Identify yourself for the

         14  record, please?  You having a party tonight, Roger?

         15  Are you having a thing for the Historical Society

         16  tonight?

         17                 MR. LANG:  Yes, Architect John Bell

         18  will be giving a lecture about his new book on the

         19  Grand Central Terminal.

         20                 Good morning, Chairman Sabini and

         21  members of the Subcommittee.  I'm Roger Lang,

         22  representing the New York Landmarks Conservancy.

         23  I'm here to urge each of you, as well as your

         24  colleagues on the Land Use Committee and full

         25  Council to unanimously ratify the designation of the
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          2  Bennet- Farrell- Feldmann House in Bay Ridge,

          3  Brooklyn, as a City Landmark.

          4                 Your action is the final step needed

          5  to confer the protection of the City's Landmarks Law

          6  on this venerable house, now in its 153rd year.  In

          7  our view, your timing couldn't be better. On the eve

          8  of the new millennium when we're all keenly aware of

          9  the passage of time, why not reach way back to

         10  another era, a generation before the Civil War when

         11  Bay Ridge was farmland, to designate and celebrate

         12  this splendid survivor?

         13                 The house is indisputably a Landmark

         14  for its architectural and historical significance.

         15  In the AIA Guide, Wilinski and White termed it an

         16  extraordinary Greek Revival remnant, miraculously

         17  preserved.  The Landmarks Preservation Commission's

         18  Director of Research, Mary Beth Bets, called it the

         19  grandest, mid- nineteenth century house in Brooklyn,

         20  and Debra Gardner, Landmarks Commissioner and

         21  Historian, noted its a breakthrough Landmark for Bay

         22  Ridge.

         23                 The Landmarks Conservancy supported

         24  this one all the way.  We responded when Victoria

         25  Hoffman and Neil Cohen first called, we met with the
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          2  community, encouraged the formation of the Friends

          3  group, and appealed to the Landmarks Preservation

          4  Commission for a speedy hearing.  We then reached

          5  out to the owner and developer, brought in old house

          6  experts, helped rally testimony and ran an article

          7  about the house in our newsletter.  Throughout,

          8  Jennifer Rabb and her staff were very helpful, as

          9  was Richard Feldmann the owner and his consultants.

         10                 This is the way the land marking

         11  process is supposed to work, now it's up to you to

         12  finish the job.  I hope you have all treated

         13  yourselves to a visit to this remarkable place.  The

         14  first time I did in 1997, I turned the corner onto

         15  95th Street from Shore Drive and the sight left me

         16  stunned and speechless.  There it was, a time

         17  capsule from another age, intact, well- kept, and

         18  breathtakingly beautiful.  I brought along two

         19  photos that I took on that bright June day.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Sergeant- At-

         21  Arms, pass those to the members of the Committee,

         22  please?

         23                 MR. LANG:  Please make this a special

         24  day for the citizens of Bay Ridge and all of New

         25  York by voting aye on this matter.  Thank you and
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          2  thank you for the opportunity to present the

          3  Conservancy's views.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

          5  Lang.  I'm delighted in your testimony to hear that

          6  you reached out to the owner of the house.  You

          7  know, we try to be sensitive to the property rights

          8  on this panel, and the fact that you reached out to

          9  him, and at least tried to convince the owner that

         10  there would be partnership with others in the

         11  preservation community if this house was designated

         12  is the role that your organization fills so well.  I'm

         13  aware of this house, I have been down that

         14  neighborhood a number of times, and although I have

         15  never been inside it, you're right, it is striking,

         16  and I thank you for your testimony.

         17                 Any questions from members of the

         18  panel?  Thank you, Mr. Lang.

         19                 MR. LANG:  Thank you, Sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I am not going

         21  to adjourn, not close this portion of the hearing.

         22                 For the students who are here, let me

         23  just point out to you, what Landmarks do, is, it

         24  preserves a bit of history, and now from the turn of

         25  the last century, from 1900 for you to see, so that
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          2  we will have older buildings, examples of

          3  architecture that are long gone, that will be your

          4  chance to see those when you have students of your

          5  own in school and want to show them.

          6                 I'm now going to move forward to Land

          7  Use 597, Community Board #15 in Brooklyn, Council

          8  Member Nelson's District. Let me also note for the

          9  record, we're joined by Council Member Bill Perkins

         10  from Manhattan, a member of the Subcommittee, and

         11  ask SCA representatives to come forward, state your

         12  name for the record, please?

         13                 MS. RACHELSON:  Good morning.  My

         14  name is Tami Rachelson from the New York City School

         15  Construction Authority.

         16                 MS. COCHRAN (phonetic):  I'm Linda

         17  Cochran from the New York City Board of Education.

         18                 MS. RACHELSON:  We are here to

         19  testify on the proposal to construct an 850 seat

         20  high school to be built on the Campus of

         21  Kingsborough Community College Campus.  This program

         22  currently operates on the Kingsborough Campus in

         23  temporary, one story structures.  The high school

         24  currently has an enrollment of approximately 740

         25  students, and the project would provide permanent
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          2  state- of- the- art educational facilities to the

          3  school, and we're requesting approval for this

          4  siting.

          5                 If there are any questions?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

          7  Wooten has a question, if you would just hold on one

          8  second.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Good morning.

         10    I'm interested in you talk in terms of having 700

         11  and some students?

         12                 MS. RACHELSON:  Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  What is the

         14  selection process?  Is it specialized kind of high

         15  school?

         16                 MS. RACHELSON:  I believe it is

         17  specialized for Sciences, and I believe it is open

         18  to high school students City wide, and they draw

         19  most of their students from the Borough of Brooklyn

         20  and a few from Queens.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  What process

         22  would be utilized to select these students?

         23                 MS. COCHRAN:  I'm not sure we can

         24  answer that, we don't have anyone from the high

         25  school.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  You see that

          3  is the part that bothers me that when you come

          4  before us, at least, you could touch bases with

          5  those people who impact on education so that we

          6  could have this resolved before we get to the table.

          7    However, I really need to know an answer to that,

          8  because the number of students who would want to be

          9  in that kind of program, 700 some odd, does not even

         10  touch the numbers that we would need.

         11                 Is there another program of that kind

         12  in Brooklyn?

         13                 MS. RACHELSON:  Just to let you know,

         14  the proposal is to build an 850 seat school.  Right

         15  now they're in temporary structures on the Campus.

         16  There is an existing Kingsborough High School.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  How much

         18  money is in the budget to deal with that?

         19                 MS. RACHELSON:  I believe there is

         20  approximately forty odd million dollars for the

         21  construction of this school.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  And you're

         23  anticipated it being completed by when?

         24                 MS. RACHELSON:  That has not been

         25  decided, it depends on the duration of construction,
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          2  what is decided to go with either various options on

          3  the table at this point.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  As the Chair

          5  of the Education Committee for the Council, I would

          6  appreciate very much those people who are in charge

          7  of the whole process touch basis with either myself

          8  or the Counsel to the Committee to let us know. I

          9  would like to, Mr. Chair, I really would like to

         10  know a little more information on the procedures,

         11  because we find that our young does not have too

         12  much to compete for, and they're almost out before

         13  they're in.  And we want an insurance on the time

         14  table for that school, the process on how you go

         15  about selecting the 700 and some odd, and how money

         16  this is costing, and why the education component of

         17  the program, while the Board of Higher Education is

         18  on another Chair, the high school still falls under

         19  my Chair as the Education Committee.  So I would

         20  appreciate those answers.

         21                 MS. RACHELSON:  We will have that

         22  information sent to you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  This is not the

         24  first time the Board of Ed Facilities or SCA has

         25  heard this.  This Committee is a Land Use Committee
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          2  and we do siting, but we don't do siting in a

          3  vacuum.  So when we site a school, there is

          4  education politics involved, and we're fortunate

          5  enough to have Council Member Wooten who Chairs the

          6  Education Committee as a member of this panel. We're

          7  going to site a courthouse, and we're certainly

          8  going to want to hear from the Chairman of the

          9  appropriate Committee there.

         10                 When we do these things there are

         11  times that are policy questions that are non- Land

         12  Use questions involved too, and I think it is fair,

         13  especially from SCA and the Board of Ed that you

         14  come prepared with the answers, because you know

         15  Council Member Wooten is going to ask them each and

         16  every time, and she is right to do so.  Okay?

         17                 I just had one other question

         18  following up with one of your answers, how are

         19  people from Queens, high school students are

         20  expected to get there?

         21                 MS. RACHELSON:  They take public

         22  transportation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And you really

         24  expect people, people from Queens - -

         25                 MS. RACHELSON:  No, I'm just saying
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          2  that there are. When we were doing transportation

          3  studies for the environmental review, that there is

          4  a small contingency of students from the Rockaways

          5  that go to this school.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  From the

          7  Rockaways, so they would take, like two buses, I

          8  guess, or something like that.  Wow, okay, all

          9  right, I guess from the Rockaways it is believable,

         10  but there are not many other places on earth in

         11  Queens, at least, that is believable that you can

         12  get there in the morning in less than two hours or

         13  so.  Okay, thank you.

         14                 I believe we are going to want to

         15  hear the Queens item next.  The problem is that the

         16  affected Council member and the Head of the affected

         17  agency are in the next room discussing another Land

         18  Use matter at another Subcommittee.  So I'm told

         19  they're going to suspend their meeting and join us

         20  here.  In which case we will hear the Queens item.

         21                 Okay, it looks like we're now going

         22  to hear Land Use 600 and 601 in Queens Community

         23  Board #1, Council Member Walter L. McCaffrey's

         24  District, an application by the Department of City-

         25  wide Administrative Service and the Economic
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          2  Development Corporation, pursuant to Section 197- C

          3  of the Charter, for acquisition of property on the

          4  east side of 36th Street between 34th and 35th

          5  Avenues, and disposition to EDC of the property

          6  between 35th and 37th Streets, 34th and 36th

          7  Avenues, pursuant to zoning to expand studio and

          8  production facilities.  I want to call the agency as

          9  a witness, first off, EDC, and we're joined by

         10  Council Member McCaffrey, and we have other

         11  witnesses who want to speak on this, as well.

         12                 We're even graced by the Head of EDC,

         13  himself, Michael Carey.  We appreciate your

         14  indulgence here.  We're all stretched a little thin

         15  today.  State your names for the record, please?

         16                 MR. CAREY:  My name is Michael Carey.

         17    I'm the President of the City's Economic

         18  Development Corporation, and to my left is Barbara

         19  Resnikow, who is the Project Manager, Vice President

         20  at EDC.

         21                 MR. ROSENBLEUTH:  My name is Hal

         22  Rosenbleuth, and I'm President of Kaufman Astoria

         23  Studios.

         24                 MR. CAREY:  Ready, Mr. Chairman?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes.
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          2                 MR. CAREY:  I have a prepared

          3  statement that I will read.  The City acquired the

          4  Kaufman Studio's site which includes buildings on

          5  several blocks in Astoria, Queens from the Federal

          6  Government in about 1982.  First developed in the

          7  1920s, it was a studio for a group of film

          8  producers, which later became Paramount Pictures.

          9  The site was used by the Army to make educational

         10  films up from the 1040s till about 1970s when it was

         11  vacated.

         12                 After the City acquired the site they

         13  leased it to the Economic Development Corporation,

         14  which in turn subleased it to Kaufman Astoria

         15  Studios then a joint venture of George Kaufman, Alan

         16  King and Johnny Carson.  In the main building which

         17  covered blocks between 34th and 35th Avenues,

         18  between 35th and 36th Streets, Kaufman Astoria

         19  Studio operates film studios and sound stages.

         20  These are leased generally for short- term for

         21  television, movie and music productions.  Sesame

         22  Street, The Bill Cosby Show, The First Wives Club,

         23  Ransom, have all been filmed there.

         24                 In addition, Kaufman Astoria Studio

         25  provides ancillary services, such as eatery, excuse

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  me, catering and set design and construction for

          3  these productions.  The American Museum of the

          4  Moving Image is a subtenant of Kaufman in another

          5  building in the complex.

          6                 Kaufman now proposes to construct an

          7  expansion studio across from 36th Street from the

          8  main building.  It would include 15,000 square feet

          9  of studio space and 15,000 square feet of support

         10  space as well, also, a parking lot for 66 cars.  The

         11  space of the expansion includes one parcel of land

         12  that is owned currently by the City and four lots

         13  that are currently owned by Kaufman Astoria.

         14                 The present item is a request for the

         15  approval of number of transactions required to

         16  implement the project.  These include acquisition by

         17  the City of New York of the Kaufman Astoria Studio's

         18  own lots for a nominal amount, entering into a new

         19  lease between the City to the Economic Development

         20  Corporation, and in turn, sublet from the Economic

         21  Development Corporation to Kaufman Studios for the

         22  property for the expansion of the studios.  And

         23  lastly, a restruction of the existing sublease to

         24  Kaufman Astoria Studio of the lease between EDC and

         25  Kaufman.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 The project budget is $8.3 million.

          3  It is proposed that Kaufman will receive a total of

          4  not more than $4.3 million from EDC for construction

          5  of the project, including asbestos removal from

          6  City- owned buildings, pursuant to funding and/or

          7  grant agreements.  Of this amount, roughly $3

          8  million will be provided from City Council funds as

          9  a grant, and an addition $1.2 million will be funded

         10  by EDC and will be repaid as additional rent for the

         11  expansion site at a rate of roughly $36,000 per year

         12  in years 1 thru 5.  In years 6 thru 20 the payments

         13  will be based on 7 percent interest increase, and

         14  there would be the 21- year self amortizing schedule

         15  or $110,000 per annum.

         16                 Okay, the project is expected to

         17  generate approximately 45 full- time studio

         18  production jobs and approximately 55 construction-

         19  related jobs.  The project has a great deal of local

         20  support, and I would ask for its approval, subject

         21  to any questions, of course, that the Council

         22  members may have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Anyone else?

         24  Okay.  Questions from the members of the Committee?

         25  Council Member McCaffrey.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Thank you

          3  very much, Mr. Chairman.  Let me just say that we

          4  view this project with a great deal of pride in the

          5  Council since it was the Council that came to the

          6  table with a financial commitment long before the

          7  City or the State.  The Council had, to date, had

          8  put in $2.5 million, we are agreeing at this time to

          9  allow an additional $600,000 to be spent on

         10  demolition funds that had been provided for

         11  attendant to the AMMI facility next door.  Speaker

         12  Vallone and I, who share this district understand

         13  the great importance for those of us in western

         14  Queens and the economic multiplier effect that this

         15  has.  Broadly for us in the Borough it helps to

         16  solidify the Borough's preeminence in the City of

         17  New York in terms of TV and Motion Picture

         18  production.  Certainly, in combination with what the

         19  Council is helping with the expansion of the Silver

         20  Cup Studios, our proposed action in the coming

         21  budget for Paris Studios and a number of other

         22  smaller independent facilities, we see that the

         23  Borough is truly the preeminent location, and that

         24  in a broader sense is strengthening the City of New

         25  York as being the preeminent capital in the East
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          2  Coast.

          3                 We recognize that George Kaufman has

          4  been a legendary pioneer in making this work, and we

          5  certainly understand that in the beginning days this

          6  was not exactly the easiest proposal to become

          7  involved with, to take the old Army Victoria Studios

          8  and to turn them into a facility that would be as

          9  successful, was one that was a vision that Mr.

         10  Kaufman had, granted he had others around him, but

         11  really he was the one that carried this over the

         12  years.  We have had a close collaborative

         13  relationship with him and with Hal Rosenbleuth, who

         14  is the President of the Studios.

         15                 At the same time, we have, also,

         16  another jewel and that is the American Museum of the

         17  Moving Image, and it is our understanding that there

         18  is an agreement to separate out their lease

         19  arrangement and the ground lease arrangement so that

         20  they will be stand alone on this, and so we are

         21  very, very pleased.           There are, however,

         22  two other aspects that I just want to be able to

         23  raise at this point.  One, 36th Street will not be

         24  closed to pedestrian or vehicular traffic, I just

         25  want to be able to have that put on both by EDC and
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          2  Kaufman onto the record indicating that that is the

          3  case.

          4                 MR. CAREY:  That is correct.

          5                 MR. ROSENBLEUTH:  That is correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  That at

          7  the request of people within the community that the

          8  facilities, garage, entrance, be located on 37th

          9  Street at a point away from the residential

         10  properties on the block, and that that has been

         11  accommodated and is reflected in the plans that are

         12  presented to us at this time.

         13                 MR. ROSENBLEUTH:  That is correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  By the

         15  way, do we have a sense of how frequently that that

         16  facility would be used, and how many vehicles a day

         17  would going in and out, or a week which is probably

         18  more accurate?

         19                 MR. ROSENBLEUTH:  Depending upon the

         20  type of production that is in, it tends to be

         21  somewhat infrequently once a production load is in,

         22  they tend to stay for an extended period of time,

         23  like Cosby, which we are now in the fourth season

         24  of, and the amount of back and forth that we have in

         25  terms of loading dock traffic is somewhat limited.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Okay.  And

          3  lastly, is there an anticipated date as to when we

          4  would begin construction and completion, also that

          5  time schedule, if someone could address?

          6                 MR. ROSENBLEUTH:  It is our hope that

          7  completion happens by the end of 2000, and that we

          8  will be beginning environmental abatement and

          9  demolition rather shortly.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Thank you

         11  very much.  At this time, Mr. Chairman, I don't have

         12  any other questions other than to indicate

         13  enthusiastic support for the proposal to move

         14  forward.  I want to thank my own staff that has

         15  worked on this for a long time, on Ms. Roturier

         16  (phonetic) from my staff who spent a great deal of

         17  time on the capital budget aspect, as well as the

         18  Speaker's capital budget staff, Amy Kline has been

         19  most, most helpful to us, and our own Chief of

         20  Staff, Bruce Bender.

         21                 The Speaker and I are delighted to

         22  see this project move forward.  On behalf of us and

         23  the Council, we, as I say, look forward to great

         24  things coming from this location.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you,
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          2  Council Member McCaffrey.  Mr. Carey, you wanted to

          3  make another point, I see.

          4                 MR. CAREY:  Yes, I just wanted to

          5  share Council Member McCaffrey's observations.  This

          6  has been a very good working relationship as far the

          7  Economic Development Corporation's involvement with

          8  the Council in going forward with Kaufman Astoria, I

          9  share your views of Kaufman's successes and its

         10  contributions to the Borough of Queens, and,

         11  obviously, the vitality of the film industry and TV

         12  industry, and this has been a very good experience

         13  for Economic Development Corporation in terms of

         14  working with the Council and with a private

         15  developer in making a project come to reality, and,

         16  as well, in working towards separating out the

         17  restructuring the AMMI lease, will work actively on.

         18    So I just wanted to share with you those

         19  observations, I appreciate it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:   I also

         21  would be negligent not to thank the Borough

         22  President who provided $300,000 on this proposal

         23  also, so I just want to thank her, and she has been

         24  involved in this for a long period of time in terms

         25  of the studio's overall existence from the start,
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          2  and it is flourishing.

          3                 MR. CAREY:  She has been an active

          4  booster and supporter of this, as well.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  And if I

          6  didn't say that, she would be yelling at me later on

          7  this afternoon.

          8                 MR. CAREY:  Ditto.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I was going to

         10  ask you, Mr. Carey, to provide either a verbal or

         11  nodding sign of agreement about the stand alone

         12  nature of the AMMI lease, but you just did, I guess,

         13  in your response to Council Member McCaffrey, so

         14  that is good, because I hadn't heard it up until

         15  then.

         16                 MR. CAREY:  Yes, I did.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

         18    We have another witness.

         19                 MR. ROSENBLEUTH:  Mr. Chairman, if I

         20  just may for a second?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes.

         22                 MR. ROSENBLEUTH:  Just so you

         23  understand, we're an industry that generates nearly

         24  $3 billion a year in the City, and it needs to

         25  expand, it needs to expand on a very business
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          2  justifiable means.  We have all read many articles

          3  about expansion, very few and far between have come

          4  to fruition.  And it's thanks to Walter McCaffrey, I

          5  have to say, who had the vision to understand that

          6  as well as the need for the City to take advantage

          7  of what was already existing that was at Kaufman

          8  Astoria Studios, in order to help make this

          9  expansion happen and begin to secure the industry in

         10  a very viable way.  And I want to thank you, Walter

         11   - -

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Thank you.

         13                 MR. ROSENBLEUTH: - -  and you along

         14  with Peter Vallone, who was able to secure the first

         15  money to actually allow this expansion to take

         16  place.  And it is due to these two gentlemen and

         17  working with Claire, Michael and his staff, and some

         18  of the people in the State Government, as well as

         19  Astoria Federal Savings that has allowed a financial

         20  plan to come together that is making this expansion

         21  actually work in a very justifiable means.  And I

         22  want to thank everyone involved that is allowing us

         23  to secure ourselves as a first class production

         24  center that has been since 1920, and the growth of

         25  the industry that is taking place in Queens, and I
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          2  think we are big part and center of that, and I want

          3  to thank all of you very much for that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, you

          5  know, these issues never seem to go away.  In your

          6  case, the issue gets better because the studio has

          7  flourished.  And 22 years ago I worked on, with Sam

          8  Roberts, when it was the weed strewn, Army Pictorial

          9  Center, when I worked for Assembly Member Clifford

         10  Wilson at the first sort of germination of the seed

         11  of what is now a very profitable and flourishing

         12  production center.

         13                 So sometimes issues just keep coming

         14  back and they're annoying and they never get solved,

         15  yours is an issue that has happy products coming out

         16  of it, not a happy ending, because it is really,

         17  it's part of an ongoing great effort to make Queens

         18  a film capital and production capital, and I thank

         19  you.

         20                 We have another witness on this

         21  matter, if no else has questions to the panel?

         22  Okay, thank you.  Anna Chiriani. State you name for

         23  the record, please?  Could we put the witness's

         24  microphone on, please?

         25                 MS. CHIRIANI:  Hi, my name Anna
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          2  Chiriani, and I'm a resident of 37th Street, the

          3  proposed site of the new building. The residents, in

          4  the area, are not against the new building and the

          5  new studios.  What we are against is the building

          6  and the loading dock facing our homes.  Right now we

          7  have a movie theater on the corner and the museum.

          8  We have very little parking, lots of foot traffic,

          9  and the loading dock would be an interruption in our

         10  lives more than we have now.  We would like them to

         11  build it on 36th Street, facing their own buildings.

         12    There are no residential homes from 34th Avenue up

         13  to 36th Street, on, I'm sorry, 36th Avenue on 36th

         14  Street.  So a loading dock wouldn't impugn anybody's

         15  rights or comfort.

         16                 We feel, and I have the petitions and

         17  the letters to the Planning Commission and

         18  Councilman McCaffrey, people in the area don't want

         19  the loading dock facing our homes, we prefer Kaufman

         20  to build it facing their own buildings, so it

         21  wouldn't affect our quality of life, and there is

         22  nothing to say later on down the road, if Kaufman

         23  rents this out, these studios to someone else or

         24  sells it, that any promises that they make about how

         25  many trucks come in, those promises may not stand
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          2  any longer if they lease or sell to someone else,

          3  then we're up the creek without a paddle, so- to-

          4  speak.  And we would like you, please, to have them

          5  change that portion of their plan and build the

          6  loading dock facing their own property on 36th

          7  Street.

          8                 Thank you very much for your time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         10  Questions from members of the Committee?  Council

         11  Member McCaffrey.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  I

         13  understand the source of concerns, which is why in

         14  its original configuration I indicated that I would

         15  be opposed to the location there, and I think, quite

         16  frankly, if we had had 36th Street closed off there

         17  would be a great deal of pressure on 37th Street,

         18  which is why as one of the requirements that I have

         19  insisted that that not be closed, and it is

         20  something that we all, we would be more than happy

         21  to monitor, and it strikes a balance here that the

         22  traffic analysis issues, et cetera, are viewed

         23  through the EIS process to now look at that option

         24  in the way that might have afforded everybody a

         25  better comfort level.
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          2                 We think we have struck a good

          3  compromise.  We thought we had some problems with

          4  the theater issue that that has worked out a little

          5  bit less than what folks anticipated on traffic.

          6  It's our hope that that will be the similar case

          7  here. We appreciate your concerns.

          8                 MS. CHIRIANI:  Know that the traffic

          9  is quite a lot from the theater.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  No, I'm

         11  saying in the sense of the balance coming through

         12  the two streets.

         13                 MS. CHIRIANI:  Oh, no, no, no, you

         14  know, we understand that new projects are good for

         15  the community.  It's just that we're getting almost

         16  all the traffic from the museum, from the theater,

         17  and we would just like our block to have a little

         18  bit more semblance of the ambiance and dynamics that

         19  we have had for the last 20 years.  It's a quiet

         20  block, people are always saying hello when you walk

         21  down the block, it's friendly.  And I think that

         22  would really change everything for us.

         23                 I don't see them having a problem

         24  building it opposite their own buildings, I truly

         25  don't, and it would alleviate the problems that we
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          2  would have with trucks coming in.  We have a lot of

          3  elderly, some of them are bedridden.  That is all

          4  they have, they look out the windows, some of them,

          5  and if they're going to be seeing trucks parked

          6  loading and unloading, and as I said, later on if

          7  they decide to sell or lease it, anything that they

          8  say will not stand, any promises that they say now,

          9  one truck a week, maybe two trucks a week, those

         10  promises are null and void then, and then we have no

         11  protection.

         12                 And I'm asking you as representatives

         13  of our rights and comforts, please, have them change

         14  those plans.

         15                 Thank you very much for your time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Thank you

         17  for coming.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         19  Okay.  We are now going to hear - -

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Thank you

         21  very much, Mr. Chairman, for your indulgence.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you,

         23  Council Member McCaffrey, and thank you for taking

         24  the time to interrupt your hearing, we will be

         25  voting on this either today or at a later session.
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          2                 We're now going to hear Land Use #

          3  539 through 544, which are related, and I want to

          4  introduce the students that are here as well, just

          5  for the record I will try to summarize what those

          6  items are, the details are available in the written

          7  agendas that are available up at the Sergeant- At-

          8  Arms' desk.

          9                 Land Use 539, Bronx Community Board

         10  #4, I believe it's a roll in Council Member Foster's

         11  District and all in Community Board #4.  Land Use

         12  539, C 980469 ZMX, which eliminates from existing

         13  R7- 1 District a C1- 4 District, an area bounded by

         14  East 161st Street, a line between Grand Avenue and

         15  Morris Avenue, a line 100 feet north of 161st Street

         16  and Morris Avenue; changing from an R7- 1 District

         17  to a C4- 6 District, property bounded by East 161st

         18  Street, a line midway between Grant Avenue and

         19  Morris Avenue, East 162nd Street and Morris Avenue;

         20  and changing from C8- 3 District to C4- 6 District,

         21  property bounded by East 161st Street, Sheridan

         22  Avenue, a line in the middle of East 161st Street, a

         23  line in the middle between Sheridan Avenue and

         24  Sherman Avenue, a line 100 feet south of East 163rd

         25  Street and Sherman Avenue, a line 130 feet south of
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          2  163rd Street, Grant Avenue, East 164th Street, and a

          3  line midway between Grant and Morris Avenues.

          4                 Land Use 540, C 980470 MMX,

          5  application by the Mayor's Office of Criminal

          6  Justice Coordinator and Department of City- wide

          7  Administrative Services to eliminate, or

          8  discontinue, or close East 162nd Street between

          9  Sherman and Grant Avenues, and Grant Avenue between

         10  East 161st Street and East 162nd Street; and the

         11  delineation of the utilities between Sherman Avenue

         12  and Grant Avenue; and the acquisition and

         13  disposition of any property related hereto.

         14                 Land Use 541, C 980472 ZSX,

         15  application by the Mayor's Office of Criminal

         16  Justice Coordinator and DCAS for a special permit

         17  pursuant to Section 74- 53 of the Zoning Resolution

         18  for a parking garage.

         19                 Land Use 452, C 980473 ZSX,

         20  application from the Mayor's Office of Criminal

         21  Justice Coordinator and DCAS for a special permit

         22  for a community facility to apply to a courthouse

         23  and the modification of the height and setback for,

         24  and air rights to penetrate sky exposure plants from

         25  Sherman Avenue, East 161st Street and Morris Avenue,
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          2  for the proposed 10- story courthouse.

          3                 Land Use 543 and 544, which are C

          4  980467 PCX and C 980468 PPX, application submitted

          5  by the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice

          6  Coordinator and DCAS, the acquisition of property

          7  bounded by Grant and Morris Avenues, East 161st and

          8  East 162nd Streets; and site selection of property

          9  in that general area; and subsequent disposition to

         10  the Dormitory Authority, which I believe would be

         11  the builders of this facility; and the re-

         12  acquisition of those properties from the Dormitory

         13  Authority and disposition of space not needed for

         14  court purposes to facilitate the construction of a

         15  courthouse.

         16                 So, we're going to hear 529 through

         17  544 now.  I believe the agency, somebody from the

         18  agency or appropriate agencies are here, and if

         19  you're here from an agency step forward as is

         20  customary, you will be the first people to testify,

         21  state your name for the record, please?

         22                 And before we start let's identify,

         23  we have a student class here from, I believe, Saint

         24  Angela Merici School; is that right, is there a

         25  teacher here, or a principal?  Okay, and what grade
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          2  is this?  Eighth grade, and you are here to witness

          3  and I think some are even going to testify on this

          4  matter, and we welcome you to the City Council and

          5  to our Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Sitings and

          6  Maritime Uses.

          7                 Okay, we do clap when we have

          8  visiting students, so we will clap.  Thank you,

          9  Councilwoman Wooten, the reason I didn't do it,

         10  normally they're here on a tour, but they're

         11  actually here to be part of the hearing this time,

         12  and that might be prejudicial if we, we like having

         13  young people, we don't want to be prejudicial for

         14  their opinions, because their maybe people who

         15  disagree with them today.

         16                 Okay, folks from the agency, identify

         17  yourselves for the record, please, let us know who

         18  you are?

         19                 MS. RICHROATH:  Good afternoon, Mr.

         20  Chairman, members of the Committee.  My name is

         21  Marybeth Richroath.  I'm the Executive Assistant

         22  Coordinator at the Mayor's Office of the Criminal

         23  Justice Coordinator.  On behalf of the Mayor and the

         24  City, I am very pleased to have the opportunity this

         25  afternoon to present the City's proposal for the
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          2  Bronx Criminal Court Complex as part of the public

          3  review process attended to the ULURP.

          4                 First the context for the project.

          5  As you are no doubt aware, there are insufficient

          6  court facilities in the Bronx and those that exist

          7  are dilapidated and overcrowded.  This statement

          8  applies equally to the Criminal Court, Supreme Court

          9  Criminal Term, Civil Court, Supreme Court Civil

         10  Term, and Family Court.  In a futile attempt to

         11  provide space necessary to meet the needs of the

         12  increasing caseloads, courtrooms have been created

         13  wherever they will fit, and much smaller than

         14  adequate to meet those caseloads.  Criminal Term

         15  Court rooms are housed in buildings designed for

         16  civil cases, thus the provisions for producing

         17  prisoners are inadequate, and often pose security

         18  risks by requiring prisoners to be walked through

         19  public hallways.  Victims and defendants wait in the

         20  same hallways.  I see that there are members of the

         21  Judiciary here who will be addressing the Committee

         22  later this morning or this afternoon, and will

         23  outline the conditions of the courts to you in

         24  greater detail.

         25                 Clearly, however, there is a great
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          2  need to increase space and modernization of that

          3  which remains.  As part of the overall court

          4  facilities master plan, the City will address this

          5  need.  The Bronx Criminal Court Complex, which will

          6  be presented by the architect today, is the first

          7  step in achieving that goal. Once Phase I of the new

          8  courthouse is built, the Supreme Criminal Court

          9  parts from the Bronx County Courthouse and the

         10  current combined Family and Criminal Court will

         11  relocate into the new facility.  At that point,

         12  large scale renovations will take place to the Bronx

         13  County Courthouse, returning that facility to use as

         14  a Civil and Supreme Civil Courthouse.

         15                 Once Phase II of the Bronx Criminal

         16  Complex is complete, the current combined Criminal

         17  Family Court will be renovated into a building

         18  housing only the Family Court.  So there are

         19  benefits not only to the users of the Criminal

         20  Court, but to litigants, jurors and attorneys

         21  frequenting any of the Civil, Family, or Criminal

         22  Courts in the Bronx to beginning the modernization

         23  process by approving the construction of this new

         24  building.

         25                 The architect is here and will
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          2  describe in detail the design of the building.  I

          3  would like to take a few moments though to describe

          4  the history of the project and its evolution to the

          5  current design.  Six years ago the City began to

          6  plan for the project and held a series of meetings

          7  with a community working group to get input from the

          8  community and the Borough President's Office early

          9  in the project.  The original concept for the Court

         10  Building was a high and massive structure, which

         11  would accommodate the entire Court program on City-

         12  owned property.  The community and the Borough

         13  President's Office were opposed to such a massive

         14  structure, which was out of context with the rest of

         15  the community. In response to these concerns and

         16  following the recommendations of the community and

         17  the Borough President, it was decided to expand the

         18  size of the parcel on which the courthouse was going

         19  to be built to include privately owned property, so

         20  that the court program could be accommodated in a

         21  lower building.

         22                 There were 10 meetings with the

         23  working group and agreements were reached concerning

         24  certain amenities that would be included in the

         25  finished project, such as ground floor retail, a day
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          2  care center that would be available for the

          3  community, and the community was asking that the

          4  High School for Law and Justice be sited on that

          5  parcel, that because that courthouse took up the

          6  entire parcel, there was at that time no room to be

          7  able to site that High School for Law and Justice.

          8                 Unfortunately, between the beginning

          9  of this process and today terrorist activities

         10  targeting the World Trade Center, the Federal

         11  Courthouse in Oklahoma City, and bombings of U.S.

         12  Embassies worldwide, caused the Federal General

         13  Services Administration to issue guidelines for

         14  security to be followed by those designing

         15  buildings, public buildings.  After the guidelines

         16  were issued, the City asked the New York City Police

         17  Department to perform a security review of the

         18  design of the Court Building. They recommended

         19  adjustments in the design, these adjustments

         20  resulted in the removal of some of the amenities the

         21  community had sought, namely, ground floor retail

         22  and the day care center.

         23                 The City is addressing those issues

         24  in the following way:  The retail that has been

         25  eliminated from the ground floor of the courthouse
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          2  due to security concerns related to uncontrolled

          3  access, it's been removed.  However, the Mayor's

          4  Office has received a commitment from the Economic

          5  Development Corporation that they will include a

          6  site or sites within a quarter- mile radius of the

          7  courthouse site, in EDC's request for proposals for

          8  retail development currently in process and expected

          9  to be released in January.  Based upon conversations

         10  that I had with representatives of EDC this week,

         11  the inventory of City- owned properties is currently

         12  under evaluation to determine which are appropriate

         13  for inclusion in the RFP.  The sites being

         14  considered will ensure development of, at least,

         15  25,000 square feet of retail space within a quarter-

         16  mile radius of the courthouse site.  EDC is in the

         17  process of evaluating the inventory in consultation

         18  with the appropriate City agencies to decide which

         19  property or combination of properties is suitable

         20  for commercial development.

         21                 Day care, due to the bombing in

         22  Oklahoma City and other security concerns the day

         23  care center targeted for the community was removed

         24  from the courthouse.  However, the City is committed

         25  to providing day care to this community and has
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          2  worked diligently to identify an acceptable site

          3  which would provide the needed space with as little

          4  delay as possible.  When the day care construction

          5  was removed from the court project, the money

          6  allocated to that day care construction was moved

          7  out of the court project.  Because the labor Sherman

          8  Replacement Day Care Center, which was also being

          9  built to replace the day care center which was on

         10  the project site, and that replacement had passed

         11  through ULURP with no opposition, the City proposed

         12  an addition to that site, which would provide all

         13  the day care slots originally contemplated by the

         14  court project day care site 18 months earlier.

         15                 Unfortunately, the City did not

         16  anticipate that the community would oppose this

         17  addition because it was south of 161st Street.  We

         18  met with Council Member June Eisland, Land Use

         19  Committee and members of the community, and at that

         20  meeting on November 10th, we stated that the City is

         21  committed to building a day care center north of

         22  161st Street.  We are awaiting input from the local

         23  elected officials, preferably in writing as to the

         24  appropriate site or sites which should be

         25  considered.  Once that input is received, the public
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          2  review process, if appropriate, will begin and the

          3  money allocated for the Labor Sherman Addition will

          4  be moved to that project.

          5                 Another change to the original design

          6  of the building was the Grant Avenue closure.

          7  Security concerns required that it be closed and not

          8  allow vehicles to pass under the courthouse, because

          9  that would be a breech of security.  Due to the

         10  traffic impacts from the closure of that street, the

         11  project size needed to be reduced, because of the

         12  reduction of the project size, there was a site at

         13  the north end of the project which could be used for

         14  the High School for Law and Justice, and the City

         15  and the Board of Education, and everyone is ready,

         16  there is money for that project to be built, and we

         17  are supportive of having the High School of Law and

         18  Justice sited on that site, as is the Board of

         19  Education.  So that request of the community, by the

         20  community, can now be accommodated where it could

         21  not have been in the past.

         22                 There were a number of traffic and

         23  parking issues. First of all, the impact of the

         24  project, the project's impact as to traffic and

         25  parking, were studied in the Environmental Impact
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          2  Study.  The consultant is here and prepared to

          3  explain that analysis that the proposed mitigation

          4  measures and how those measures will mitigate any

          5  impact caused by the project.  However, unrelated to

          6  the proposed project, there are existing conditions

          7  that are problematic.  We have addressed those

          8  existing conditions in this way.

          9                 Steven Fishner, the Criminal Justice

         10  Coordinator, has spoken to Patrick Kelleher, the

         11  First Deputy Commissioner of the Police Department,

         12  to communicate the frustration of the community

         13  regarding the parking of police vehicles in

         14  violation of their permits in the immediate vicinity

         15  of the current combined Criminal Family Court on

         16  161st Street.  The NYPD's, First Deputy Commissioner

         17  committed the Department to enforcing parking

         18  regulations against police vehicles doubled or

         19  tripled parked, parked in front of hydrants,

         20  blocking bus stops or crosswalks, or otherwise

         21  illegally parked in this vicinity.

         22                 I have spoken to an inspector,

         23  Richard Romaine, the Commanding Officer of the 44th

         24  Precinct, who is responsible for executing this

         25  directive.  He has informed that the First Deputy
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          2  Commissioner's directive has been communicated to

          3  him and that he is committed to ensuring that police

          4  vehicles are not illegally parked in the vicinity of

          5  the courts on 161st Street.

          6                 It is also clear, however, that the

          7  police vehicles that are illegally congesting 161st

          8  Street are there on valid police business,

          9  testifying in court, delivering witnesses to testify

         10  in court, or transporting defendants to court.  To

         11  address this need on an interim basis, prior to or

         12  at the beginning of Phase I construction of this

         13  court building, a gravel surface parking lot will be

         14  constructed on a portion of the City- owned property

         15  currently occupied by a vacant building.  This lot

         16  will be set aside for use by police vehicles for the

         17  period of time up until Phase II construction

         18  begins.  I am informed that the footprints of the

         19  parcel will accommodate about 40 cars.

         20                 I have spoken with Peter McGlinchey

         21  (phonetic), the Director of Metropolitan Operations

         22  for the Dormitory Authority of the State of New

         23  York, who is the agency responsible for overseeing

         24  the construction of this project, and received as

         25  his commitment to construct this parking lot as
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          2  outlined above.  Phase I includes a parking garage

          3  of 240 spaces below grade.  When Phase I is

          4  completed, the City will require the operator of the

          5  garage to set aside 60 spaces in the garage for

          6  short- term parking of police vehicles on business

          7  at the courts.

          8                 In this way, by providing alternate

          9  spaces for their needs and a commitment to increase

         10  enforcement, the traffic congestion caused by police

         11  vehicles parking on 161st Street will be eliminated

         12  permanently.

         13                 Part of the Bronx Criminal Court

         14  Complex construction project will provide jobs to

         15  the Bronx community. Based upon the contracts, which

         16  the New York City Department of Designing

         17  Construction, which designed the project,

         18  contemplated for the project, benefits to the Bronx

         19  would include a total of 2,000 construction- related

         20  jobs, over the course of both phases of

         21  construction, with a maximum of 300 construction-

         22  related jobs at the peak of construction activity.

         23  The construction managers contract requires that 10

         24  percent of the contracts let for general conditions

         25  be led to MWBE qualified contractors.
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          2                 In addition, as requested by the

          3  working group, the construction managers contract

          4  provides that a liaison with the community be hired,

          5  and based at the project site to coordinate

          6  construction issues with the community, keep them

          7  informed as to the construction progress, and be a

          8  point person for information about job opportunities

          9  at the site.

         10                 Now that the design of the project is

         11  almost complete, responsibility for construction of

         12  the courthouse has been passed to the Dormitory

         13  Authority.  DDC's existing contracts will be

         14  assigned to DASNY, and DASNY will comply with the

         15  MWBE requirements of the construction managers

         16  contract.  DASNY's projections for the number of

         17  construction- related jobs over the course of the

         18  project mirrors DDC's.  DASNY's Office of

         19  Opportunities Program requires that all construction

         20  contracts set aside 15 percent of the contract

         21  opportunities for MBE firms and 5 percent for WBE

         22  firms.  In addition, DASNY sets a goal, that is 35

         23  percent of the workforce, be comprised of minorities

         24  and women. DASNY's Office of Opportunities has

         25  assigned a member of its staff, Dennis Williams to
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          2  liaison with the community and work with individuals

          3  to help them meet the DASNY requirements for

          4  participation in the program.  Mr. William's

          5  assignment will supplement the work of the

          6  individual hired by the construction manager to keep

          7  the community apprised of the status of construction

          8  at the project on an ongoing basis.

          9                 After construction is completed the

         10  Bronx will benefit from an estimated 309 permanent

         11  State jobs and 155 permanent City positions for a

         12  total of 517 additional permanent jobs at the

         13  conclusion of both phases of the project.  These

         14  positions will be civil service positions and the

         15  civil service guidelines for employment will have to

         16  be followed.

         17                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         18  present this project for your review.  The

         19  architect, J. Bargmann of Rafael Vinoly Architects,

         20  is here to outline the project for you.  After his

         21  presentation, I will be available to respond to any

         22  questions, and we have our consultants and

         23  individuals from the relevant City agencies present

         24  to also address any questions you might have about

         25  the project, the environmental review, the proposed
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          2  mitigation, or any other issue relevant to the

          3  project.

          4                 It is clear that a new Criminal Court

          5  Complex is desperately needed in the Bronx.  As a

          6  first step to provide the Criminal, Supreme, Civil

          7  and Family Courts with much needed, suitable,

          8  sufficient and dignified quarters.  Litigants,

          9  attorneys, and ordinary citizens who perform jury

         10  duty will benefit from the more efficient

         11  administration of justice.

         12                 In addition, the immediate community

         13  will benefit from the increase in jobs,

         14  construction- related and permanent, that the

         15  construction and operation of the Court facilities

         16  will generate.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, and

         19  we will have questions.  Mr. Bargmann.

         20                 MR. BARGMANN:  Hi, good afternoon.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Before you

         22  start, just let me note for the record, Council

         23  Member Wendell Foster, and the affected Council

         24  member has joined us.

         25                 MR. BARGMANN:  My name is Jay
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          2  Bargmann.  I'm a Vice President at Rafael Vinoly

          3  Architects, and we're the architects that are

          4  leading the design team on this project.

          5                 As you have heard, the program for

          6  this building is to satisfy the New York City

          7  Courts' Master Plan, and that we felt, and that was

          8  our responsibility to accommodate that functionally

          9  and securely on this site.  But we had a second

         10  responsibility that we thought was, at least equal,

         11  if not more important than that, and that was to

         12  provide a civic space that was, belonged to the

         13  community and was integrated into the community and

         14  could be used by all the residents of New York, and

         15  that informed the design of the building, which I

         16  will describe briefly through some panels.

         17                 As you know, the site of the building

         18  is on 161st Street and the characteristics of the

         19  site are that there is a corridor, a longer

         20  corridor, this is the site here, these three blocks,

         21  connecting Yankee Stadium with Melrose Commons,

         22  161st Street is characterized with a heavily traffic

         23  street, a lot of retail, many institutional

         24  projects, commercial, shopping, development across

         25  the street from the Merola Courthouse (phonetic),
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          2  the New York City Family Court Building, so

          3  institutional, highly traffic, 161st.

          4                 In contrast to that is the lowered

          5  scale of the residential neighborhood, Saint Angela

          6  Merici School is right here on this block

          7  immediately across the street from the Courthouse

          8  development, a well knit neighborhood, many schools,

          9  Roberta Clemente School, the branch library,

         10  completely different in character from 161st Street,

         11  and that is what shape the design massing for the

         12  project, which is shown here in photographs, and in

         13  this model which is in front of you.

         14                 We took the square footage, which is

         15  over a million square feet, and made a building that

         16  was in scale with 161st Street, similar in height to

         17  the New York City Family Court Building, and kept it

         18  on the perimeter of the site, opening up as much as

         19  the site and moving the mass of the building as far

         20  as possible away from the residential and

         21  educational neighborhood to the north and the east

         22  of the site.

         23                 That resulted in creating this common

         24  space which is completely defined by the

         25  neighborhood and the building.  And the building is
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          2  intended to be a back drop building, very

          3  transparent, lightweight, glass facades on all

          4  sides.  All of the circulation in the building is to

          5  the perimeter, so the actual, what you see when you

          6  look at the building will be the comings and goings

          7  of visitors, and the comings and goings of the

          8  judges, as the business of the Court is conducted.

          9  That becomes the frame of the container for this

         10  civic space, which you see in the model here.

         11                 I will speak a little bit to the

         12  detail of that space, but first I will explain how

         13  the building works in section. The ground floor,

         14  obviously, is the entrance to the building, and

         15  above that is the courtrooms, and then a law

         16  library, which is open to the public during the

         17  times that the courthouse is open, and then the

         18  judges chambers are on the top of the building.

         19  This part is pushed against 161st Street and

         20  Sherman, and you end up with a courtyard in between.

         21                 This is a site plan of the project,

         22  161st Street is along the bottom.  The entrance to

         23  the building is on 161st Street, but what is

         24  important is that the entrance to the building, set

         25  back, is really the entrance to the civic space, and
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          2  that the entrance to the courthouse is a secondary

          3  component of this grand entrance - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Is this on the

          5  model here, so we know what you're talking about?

          6                 MR. BARGMANN:  Yes, everything is

          7  more or less represented there in abstract form.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, give

          9  him the model, let him - -

         10                 MR. BARGMANN:  Sure.  This is 161st

         11  Street elevation, and this portal is really the

         12  entry to the civic space with the entrance to the

         13  courthouse as an element within that overall portal.

         14    So that the building is a frame and a gateway to

         15  the civic space, and that is what this red era of

         16  sequence demonstrates that there is a way to

         17  permeate through the site in an informal way, while

         18  Grant Avenue has been closed at 161st Street to

         19  vehicular traffic, it still serves as a pedestrian

         20  connection, but that this blends into the community

         21  an informal sequence of circulation through the

         22  site.

         23                 The public enters here, as I said, it

         24  is set back from the street.  It is a heavily

         25  traffic building, it's 9,000 people come through it
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          2  a day, we can hold 800 to 1,000 of those people in

          3  this lobby, so that there is not lines on 161st

          4  Street as people wait to move through the building.

          5  Two thousand people enter an hour, they can flow

          6  through the security check point and up the

          7  escalator and elevators to the courtrooms.

          8                 The judges and the administrators

          9  enter at the sides of the building through separate

         10  entries from the public.  The detainees are guarded

         11  into a series of three sally (phonetic) ports which

         12  are on Sherman Avenue, and all of the detainees are

         13  brought in three buses a day, so there are three

         14  buses that arrives into each sally port and then

         15  leave, and that is completed handled internally to

         16  the building.

         17                 Parking for the 320 cars is here at

         18  the intersection of Grant Avenue and 161st Street,

         19  and that parking is under the plaza beneath the

         20  plaza which is not occupied by building above it,

         21  that was for security reasons.

         22                 The ground level then has this

         23  amphitheater type space which has trees planted,

         24  informal seating for reading, the building is low

         25  enough and set back far enough so that in the
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          2  summer, you're sitting in the shade or in the sun,

          3  if you prefer, reading, eating lunch, there can be a

          4  Farmer's Market, there will be a trellis along this

          5  side, the suggestion of a possibility of a Farmer's

          6  Market or stalls for merchandise along the streets

          7  there. And then this is the jury assembly room,

          8  which is a low- scale element, which sits as a

          9  volume in the plaza mitigating between the height of

         10  this wall and the ground.  This is the circulation

         11  system for all the users, the visitors to the

         12  building, as I said they circulate looking over the

         13  plaza and into it.

         14                 At nighttime, part of this project

         15  actually is to do a sidewalk improvement plan which

         16  will stretch several blocks in either direction.

         17  And the concept there is to not make this into an

         18  island that is floating without being integrated

         19  into the life of the street.  So we would like to

         20  relight, retree and do some kind of street furniture

         21  that brings this thread into here and makes this a

         22  focus for the traffic along, for the pedestrian

         23  traffic along 161st Street, because under the

         24  building where you walk will be very heavily lit,

         25  the lobby is all glass, the security guards has the
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          2  views into the underpass here, views into the plaza.

          3  This is all glass skylights which look down into

          4  corridors and circulation spaces in below grade.  So

          5  the perimeter of the building is as active as we

          6  possibly could make it, and then we light here the

          7  perimeter defining the amphitheater type space and

          8  trying to make the plaza work as well as at night as

          9  we will think it will be during the day.

         10                 This is a final board I will show

         11  you, and this is a computer rendering of the facade

         12  of the building on 161st Street, which is all glass,

         13  not all transparent glass.  The glass is grey dated,

         14  first of all it is folded in plains, in facets that

         15  catch the light and throw shadows of the glass wall

         16  onto itself and reflection making as subtly, dynamic

         17  facade as you move east/west on 161st Street.  And

         18  then behind there you will see the judges on this

         19  facade coming and going from their chambers to the

         20  courtroom.

         21                 That concludes my presentation, if

         22  there is any questions?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes, I think, I

         24  and members of the panel and Council Member Foster

         25  have a number.  First of all, my first blush, and I
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          2  realize you're a registered architect and that you

          3  are working on a big project, that maybe the

          4  computer rendering doesn't do the building justice,

          5  because at that kind of a rendering it looks

          6  foreboding, almost like, you know, a monolithic

          7  radiator or something.  I mean, it really doesn't

          8  give the look of someplace that you would want to be

          9  near.  Now again, I think it is probably the

         10  computer rendering, but like when you say it is not

         11  all transparent glass, what is this going to look

         12  like?

         13                 MR. BARGMANN:  The facade is a

         14  transition from frosted glass to transparent glass.

         15  The one issue that I didn't get into here is that

         16  the courtrooms all have natural daylight in them.

         17  They're in the center of the building and the floors

         18  are very high, so the upper part of the glass wall

         19  is totally clear, sunlight comes through there and

         20  is reflected into the courtroom. Below that where

         21  the judges are traveling, the glass becomes

         22  increasingly translucent, and that is for security

         23  reasons.  So that you will see the movement, you

         24  will see the volume to the courtrooms behind the

         25  wall, those will be colored and the units of the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            62

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  courtrooms will be visible from the street.  And,

          3  again, there is the faceted character of the wall

          4  which you see in that rendering, and that really is

          5  to avoid the appearance of a sheer plain.  It's

          6  light will reflect off of those facets, those folds,

          7  and they will throw shadows on themselves giving a

          8  depth, and, we think, a richness to the character,

          9  to the building, that I think it will probably not

         10  look like a radiator.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  From my

         12  own purposes, could you go back to the aerial maps,

         13  the first one, because that area of 161st Street in

         14  the Bronx is sort of a civic center for the Bronx,

         15  if you will, part by a transportation hub with buses

         16  to subway lines, part by Yankee Stadium, and I would

         17  just like to get an idea where the new facility is,

         18  where the current facilities are, is this going to

         19  replace other facilities, is it going to close

         20  facilities, just sort of give me a run through of

         21  what public buildings there are there now and will

         22  not be there and be there in the future after this?

         23                 MR. BARGMANN:  I should have

         24  mentioned originally that on the site now, - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I was going to
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          2  get to that question, too.

          3                 MR. BARGMANN: - -  now on the site

          4  there is three uses really on the site.  There are

          5  four residential buildings which have eight

          6  residential units in them, and they're concentrated

          7  on Morris Avenue.  The remainder of the site is

          8  parking lots which hold about 250 cars, and then

          9  there is a series of industrial warehouse buildings

         10  that have auto repair type uses and things in them.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Where are the

         12  residents going to go?

         13                 MR. BARGMANN:  There is a relocation,

         14  well, I should let Marybeth talk about that.

         15                 MS. RICHROATH:  There is a packet of

         16  materials that you have been given that outline, the

         17  property that is going to be acquired - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:   But we had a

         19  long weekend, but I need - -

         20                 MS. RICHROATH:  No, no, no, this one,

         21  it's in the blue packet.  But if you look - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  The first EIS

         23  written by Mitchner I have ever seen.

         24                 MS. RICHROATH:  The last two pages

         25  outline the Bronx Criminal Courthouse Project
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          2  Acquisition Time Lines, and there are, after the

          3  ULURP process is complete, DCAS will attempt to

          4  acquire the properties that are privately owned by

          5  negotiation, should that fail, the properties will

          6  be condemned.  Once condemnation is initiated, the

          7  Department of Business Services and the Department

          8  of Housing Preservation and Development have

          9  relocation services. We have identified the

         10  individuals who are involved, introduce them at the

         11  Community Board and Borough President's hearings to

         12  the members of the community, the DCAS

         13  representative has been in touch with the various

         14  property owners, and as soon as the ULURP process is

         15  completed we are mobilized to start addressing the

         16  needs of the people who are actually living or

         17  working in those areas.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Blue folder for

         19  those members of the Committee.

         20                 Okay, now the parking lot that is

         21  there now, who owns it, private, commercial?

         22                 MS. RICHROATH:  Some are City- owned

         23  and some are private.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And are these

         25  the ones made famous by Tom Wolf?
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          2                 MS. RICHROATH:  No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  No, okay.  Okay,

          4  now give me sort of the overview of it?

          5                 MR. BARGMANN:  Right, I will go back,

          6  this is the Grand Concourse that you see here, and,

          7  of course, that has the Merola Building at the

          8  intersection of 161st Street and the Grand

          9  Concourse.  This is Yankee Stadium, this is the New

         10  York City --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Go slow for me,

         12  because we're from Queens and we don't have that

         13  many buildings.  The Merola Building is the one at

         14  the southwest corner?

         15                 MR. BARGMANN:  That is the

         16  commonwealth.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right, okay.

         18                 MR. BARGMANN:  Yes, that is here.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

         20                 MR. BARGMANN:  And then as you move

         21  east on 161st Street, this is the New York City

         22  Family Court Building.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right.

         24                 MR. BARGMANN:  And this is the

         25  commercial development across the street, which is
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          2  sort of, I don't know if you are familiar with the

          3  site, this is all retail set back from the street

          4  with a sidewalk, and then Melrose Commons is to the

          5  east of the project.  And the way the courts are

          6  actually working, I'm going to read this so that I

          7  don't get it wrong, 34 court rooms, there are 62

          8  court rooms total that will be built here on this

          9  site, but 34 of them are in the first phase are

         10  being moved from the Merola Building, and seven of

         11  them are being moved from the Family Court Building.

         12    So that means that there are only 15 new court

         13  parts to the neighborhood in Phase I.

         14                 And then in Phase II, 13 additional

         15  courts from the Family Court Building will be moved,

         16  and 10 new courtrooms will be provided in the Family

         17  Court Building, so there will be a net increase of

         18  12 court rooms once the full project is built in

         19  Phase II.  So there is a lot of transferring going

         20  on, not all 62 are new to the project.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So the existing

         22  Family Court Building, which is a lease building, I

         23  believe?

         24                 MS. RICHROATH:  No, no.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  That is going to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            67

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  stay fully operational.

          3                 MS. RICHROATH:  Correct.  Right now

          4  it is a combined criminal and family court building.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right, I visited

          6  that with the Governmental Operations Committee a

          7  number of years ago and found the conditions to be a

          8  little - -

          9                 MS. RICHROATH:  Crowded?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Uh, yes.

         11                 MS. RICHROATH:  It will be renovated

         12  to be just housing the Family Court.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  So there

         14  will be no closure or withdrawal from any public or

         15  private building, just an expansion.

         16                 MS. RICHROATH:  It will be moving

         17  around and renovating to accommodate the increased

         18  caseloads.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

         20  Questions, Council Member Wooten.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  You had

         22  indicated in your presentation that the Dormitory

         23  Authority would be involved in this project; am I

         24  correct?

         25                 MS. RICHROATH:  That's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  You also

          3  mentioned School Construction Authority.

          4                 MS. RICHROATH:  I don't think I did,

          5  not the School Construction Authority, the

          6  Department of Design and Construction.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  All right, I

          8  want to back up a little bit, that is what I meant,

          9  the Design and Construction, that was a new creation

         10  that we did on the design part of the construction.

         11  The role of the Dormitory Authority takes precedent

         12  over all, or who is the lead person in this project?

         13                 MS. RICHROATH:  Takes precedence

         14  over?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  I'm talking

         16  in terms of the entire project.  You have got many,

         17  many different things going on.

         18                 MS. RICHROATH:  Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  If the

         20  Dormitory Authority is involved that means State is

         21  involved; am I correct?

         22                 MS. RICHROATH:  Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Secondly, the

         24  presentation that was given by the architect, I'm

         25  assuming, what agency do you represent, an outside?
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          2                 MR. BARGMANN:  No, we were hired by

          3  the New York City Department of Design and

          4  Construction to do the design of the project.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  So what role

          6  will the two of you play, as equals, as partners, I

          7  just want to know who I am going to fight with, if

          8  something goes wrong?

          9                 MS. RICHROATH:  Okay.

         10                 MR. BARGMANN:  You can fight with me,

         11  that's okay.

         12                 MS. RICHROATH:  Okay, what happen was

         13  the building was designed under the auspices of the

         14  New York City Department of Design and Construction

         15  who put out bids for a contract for an architect,

         16  and Rafael Vinoly won that architectural contract.

         17  Now- -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  So I have to

         19  fight you through the design part?

         20                 MR. BARGMANN:  Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Okay.

         22                 MS. RICHROATH:  The construction has

         23  now been turned over to the Dormitory Authority of

         24  the State of New York, and DDC's contracts are being

         25  assigned to the Dormitory Authority.  So Rafael
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          2  Vinoly now works for the Dormitory Authority because

          3  DDC's contracts were assigned to them so that they

          4  can continue preparing the construction documents

          5  and they can be bid out and the construction process

          6  can go forward.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Well who do

          8  you work for?

          9                 MR. BARGMANN:  Today?  I work for the

         10  Dormitory Authority of the State of New York and

         11  that is to do the construction drawing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  And tomorrow?

         13                 MR. BARGMANN:  I hope I work for the

         14  Dormitory Authority of the State of New York.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  I, you know -

         16   -

         17                 MS. RICHROATH:  This on behalf of the

         18  Mayor's Office of the Criminal Justice Coordinator,

         19  it's a City project, and the City is employing the

         20  Dormitory Authority.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  But I'm also

         22  very much aware of the State at some point will tell

         23  us what they need to do when they supersede us in a

         24  lot of matters, and that is why I would like that

         25  whole process, I would like to know the process,
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          2  because I know how they operate.

          3                 And then I want to get back again to,

          4  you talked again, today we have had two different

          5  high schools mentioned in this whole hearing.  Now

          6  we had the High School of Science, et cetera, now

          7  you mentioned the High School of Criminal Justice,

          8  what does that fit in that?

          9                 MR. BARGMANN:  There is a site that

         10  has been identified, which is at the corner of these

         11  three blocks, which is right here.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  What

         13  capacity?

         14                 MR. BARGMANN:  There is a program for

         15  high school -

         16                 MS. RICHROATH:  Law and Justice.

         17                 MR. BARGMANN:  Yes, Law and Justice.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Is there

         19  anybody here from the Board of Ed?

         20                 MS. RICHROATH:  Yes.

         21                 MR. BARGMANN:  It has 700 students

         22  and that is represented on the model here.  This is

         23  Angela Merici, this is our project, and this is the

         24  site for the High School of Law and Justice.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  How many
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          2  young people we are talking about?

          3                 MR. BARGMANN:  Seven hundred.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Again, we

          5  seem to be locked into this 700 concept.  It still

          6  does not touch the City when it comes to the number

          7  of students who want to participate in these types

          8  of programs.  I want to know again, and if you don't

          9  have the answer, you can get back to either me, the

         10  Education Chair, or to the Chair of the Subcommittee

         11  of Public Siting, I want to know program wise, I

         12  want to know, because no matter who is in charge

         13  right now, zoning is going to come back to the

         14  Education Committee, and it's going to talk about

         15  not having enough space for young people who apply,

         16  I want to know the process, and I also want to know

         17  the anticipated zoning as it interrelates to the

         18  number of students.  And my colleague, the Chair,

         19  asked for, in the other project, traveling

         20  provision.  You can't expect Brooklyn to go to the

         21  Bronx and get to school until twelve o'clock.

         22                 MS. RICHROATH:  Council Member

         23  Wooten, we have a representative from the High

         24  School of Law and Justice which currently exists,

         25  but will be moving to a new facility.  If you have
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          2  any questions, I can bring her up and you can ask

          3  her?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  I have no

          5  problems, if she can answer it, fine.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Please, step

          7  forward and identify yourself for the record?

          8                 MS. ROSS:  My name is Mesha Ross, and

          9  from the Bronx High School for Law, Government, and

         10  Justice.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Where does it

         12  exist now?

         13                 MS. ROSS:  It currently exists and we

         14  share facilities with Health Opportunities High

         15  School on Gerard Avenue right off of the Major

         16  Deegan, the old Wade Tech Building, which was

         17  redesigned to accommodate the Health Opportunities

         18  High School and the Bronx High School of Law,

         19  Government, and Justice, currently share space, a

         20  section of that building for 215 students, which we

         21  have in our school now, currently.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We should have

         23  probably land marked the building based on its

         24  significance to New York City politics.  Please

         25  answer, Councilwoman Wooten's questions?
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          2                 MS. ROSS:  Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  You

          4  originally, right now, in your program you have 215

          5  students?

          6                 MS. ROSS:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Where do they

          8  come from?

          9                 MS. ROSS:  The majority of our

         10  students come from the Bronx, the neighborhood

         11  surrounding.  We gave preference to students coming

         12  from the Bronx, students coming from District #7, 9,

         13  and 11, because those are our neighboring districts.

         14    We take some students, we have students currently

         15  from Harlem.  You know, we only have 211 students,

         16  so we have maybe four, five students from Brooklyn,

         17  but we're not a zoned high school.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Now you're

         19  going to move the 215 to 700 and change, right?

         20                 MS. ROSS:  Right, right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  And how do

         22  you propose, how would a student apply, is it open

         23  to the entire City of New York?

         24                 MS. ROSS:  Yes, we're currently what

         25  is called an educational option high school, which
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          2  means, number one, we're not a zoned high school,

          3  we're opened to students from Staten Island, from

          4  Brooklyn, from wherever students want to come.  And,

          5  right now, what we do, is the education option means

          6  that we select 50 percent of our students and the

          7  Board of Education selects the other 50 percent of

          8  our students.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  When you say

         10  you, who are you?

         11                 MS. ROSS:  The school, the school

         12  actually does an interview process.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  The school,

         14  the school administrators.

         15                 MS. ROSS:  The school administrators,

         16  the principal.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  And then you

         18  said the Board of Ed, the other 50 percent.

         19                 MS. ROSS:  Right, they have a

         20  lottery, a random.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  But aren't

         22  you both the same?

         23                 MS. ROSS:  Well, we're both the same,

         24  but the Board of Education has a system by which

         25  students are selected to go to high schools.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  So they only

          3  block in 50 percent of that 700 and some odd.

          4                 MS. ROSS:  Right, they select 50

          5  percent of the 700 and some odd students that we

          6  will have at some point, and what they do, is they

          7  select those students from the students who have

          8  made us either the first or second choice on their

          9  high school application.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Mr. Chair, I

         11  don't want to dominate your hearing, and I'm going

         12  to cut my questions, because every time she answers,

         13  I get another one.  And I'm just going to ask, is

         14  someone from the Board of Education be in touch with

         15  the Counsel of the  Education Committee so that you

         16  would be in the position to give us an overview.

         17                 I have problems with this kind of

         18  arrangement because what happens is, we agree to a

         19  concept here in a Land Use process, and when it

         20  comes to the actuality zoning, we're as Council

         21  members who represent various boroughs is going to

         22  get killed, because every student is going to want

         23  to go, and going to say, I can't go because of.  So

         24  I'm going to cut that and I appreciate your coming

         25  up, you know, giving me that brief overview. I'm
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          2  just going to close my remarks, and that is to the

          3  Mayor's representatives and say, that this project

          4  covers almost everything there is in Land Use

          5  procedure when it comes to completion.  I wish you

          6  luck.

          7                 One of the things that I'm most

          8  supportive of is that our courts do need that kind

          9  of face lift, and I concur with it, I believe that

         10  the entire City of New York should look at its

         11  courts and how the condition they're in, et cetera.

         12  But I just want to alert you, when are impacting on

         13  joint ventures between the Board of Education, I

         14  heard you mention day care, and I'm sure that when

         15  we talk on and on it's going to be many different

         16  agencies, there needs to be a gathering of all these

         17  people in one room so the people can bring there

         18  ideas and suggestions together, so this way I won't

         19  have to be asking long question.

         20                 So I would appreciate the Board of

         21  Education being in touch, updating me, but I also

         22  believe that as the Mayor's representative that you

         23  should make sure that this happens, so at this

         24  meeting we wouldn't have to go through these kind of

         25  procedure.
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          2                 Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you,

          4  Council Member Wooten.  Let me just announce a

          5  housekeeping item that the Subcommittee on Permits,

          6  Dispositions and Concessions is going to be meeting

          7  any minute now, Council Member Carrion and myself

          8  have to cast votes in there.  I will leave Council

          9  Member Wooten in charge for about two minutes, well,

         10  we may be doing this right now, so.  If you're going

         11  to leave right now, - -

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  No, before

         13  you vote, I have to go in and withdraw one of my,

         14  ask that one of my items be laid over, so I don't

         15  want you to keep me out here, and I let them get

         16  away with doing something that they didn't discuss

         17  with me.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Okay, then maybe

         19  you will return for two minutes so someone will

         20  Chair this?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  No, I will do

         22  it for you, but I just want to make it for the

         23  record, if the Mayor's Speaker is in the room, you

         24  better talk to me before I go in and stop it?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.
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          2    Council Member Carrion, you got a question?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman, and thank you both, Marybeth and Mr.

          5  Bargmann, and the representatives from the High

          6  School for Law, Government and Justice.

          7                 Mr. Chairman, we need to go in and

          8  vote momentarily, you will let me know, okay.

          9                 Let me begin, before I ask a number

         10  of questions that I have, a number of issues that I

         11  think are still unresolved. Let me begin by saying

         12  that the court facilities master plan is a good one,

         13  and I don't think, I think it's inarguable that we

         14  need more court space, more adequate court space,

         15  safer court space for everybody involved, judges,

         16  detainees, police officers, families, I'm in full

         17  agreement with you.

         18                 I also believe that the Bronx Center,

         19  as the concept that has been discussed in the Bronx

         20  for, at least, the last dozen years, is the place

         21  for the new court facility, I think it is a natural

         22  place.  So my position on this, at this point, is

         23  not that it should not be built, because it is

         24  certainly needed.  The challenge for us as a City is

         25  to do it right, and I think that is where we're
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          2  falling short in some areas.  So let me address some

          3  of the issues that I think are still outstanding,

          4  and I want to go to some detail, to some level of

          5  detail just to clarify the record and get definitive

          6  commitments from you.

          7                 With regard to day care, the issue

          8  was, we can't for security reasons, we can't include

          9  it in the court facility, the Police Department

         10  recommended that it be removed, they also

         11  recommended the removal of retail.  Understood,

         12  accepted.  So then the response was, let's expand an

         13  existing day care south of 161st Street, just so I

         14  understand that this is correct?

         15                 MS. RICHROATH:  No, the original

         16  project site included a site where there was a

         17  current day care center located already.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  On the

         19  actual site of the new courthouse?

         20                 MS. RICHROATH:  On the actual site of

         21  the new courthouse.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Northwest

         23  corner, okay.

         24                 MS. RICHROATH:  So before any of that

         25  construction was going to start, we arranged for a
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          2  day care center to replace that day care center.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Before you

          4  go on, Marybeth, I'm sorry, and I'm calling you by

          5  your first name because I forget your last name.

          6                 MS. RICHROATH:  Richroath.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, I will

          8  call you by your first name.  Is that where the high

          9  school is, where is 161st Street, where the CA- 3

         10  is, right?  Okay.  So is that where, where is Saint

         11  Angela Merici?

         12                 MR. BARGMANN:  Right here.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.  So

         14  the day care site was where the new High School for

         15  Law, Government, and Justice will be in the new - -

         16                 MS. RICHROATH:  Correct.  Originally

         17  it was the whole corner lot, and now this portion is

         18  no longer needed, so --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So the

         20  Police Department didn't think that the high school

         21  students were in danger, but they thought that the

         22  day care, the little kids were in danger.  Let me

         23  try to be as clear as possible.  The Police

         24  Department suggested that it was dangerous to have,

         25  because of the bombings of federal court buildings
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          2  and security reasons, it was not smart to have the

          3  day care where you're pointing out, which is the

          4  northwest corner of the site, right?

          5                 MS. RICHROATH:  Oh, I see where

          6  you're going.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  See where

          8  I'm going?

          9                 MS. RICHROATH:  I understand your

         10  question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  What is the

         12  difference between high school students and day care

         13  students?

         14                 MS. RICHROATH:  Okay, let me clarify

         15  this.  When we first started this project, the

         16  project site encompassed the whole and this whole

         17  entire block.  Right now, the Labor Sherman Day Care

         18  Center is located here.  As a result of this project

         19  a ULURP for site selection was initiated, went

         20  through the process to relocate this day care

         21  center, I think approximately two blocks south - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Into

         23  Concourse Village.

         24                 MS. RICHROATH:  Right.  That has been

         25  approved, the design is starting, so that is - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Was it also

          3  an expansion?

          4                 MS. RICHROATH:  Excuse me?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Was it also

          6  an expansion in terms of the numbers that it was

          7  serving?

          8                 MS. RICHROATH:  No, it was - -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Equal

         10  numbers.

         11                 MS. RICHROATH: - -  just an equal

         12  relocation.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.

         14                 MS. RICHROATH:  Then, as this project

         15  progressed and time went on, and there was these

         16  security concerns, the original project included an

         17  on- site day care center.  So the net result would

         18  be an addition of day care center spaces to the - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Let me get

         20  to the point of my question, because I know this is

         21  going to take some time.  But I beg the indulgence

         22  of the Chair and of the Committee, and everybody,

         23  because I think it is so important.

         24                 Where did the Sherman Day Care Center

         25  population come from, for the most part, and real
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          2  numbers, not we think it's from the neighborhood

          3  south of 161st Street?

          4                 MS. RICHROATH:  I would have to get

          5  back to you, I'm not from HRA so.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Is there

          7  anybody from HRA, anybody who can answer day care?

          8                 MS. RICHROATH:  We can get back to

          9  you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Yes, okay,

         11  we don't have much time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  But please get

         13  back to us, I anticipate that if we don't vote

         14  today, based on the clock, we're going to have to

         15  vote on this before the next stated Council meeting.

         16                 MS. RICHROATH:  Yes, I understand.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And Council

         18  Member Carrion, don't apologize, we're going to give

         19  people lots of rope on this because there is a lot

         20  of different layers to this project, there is street

         21  closures, there is a day care center, there is a

         22  parking garage, there is traffic considerations, a

         23  high school involved, so we're going to give people

         24  lots of rope on this.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman. So we need an answer on where those

          3  people come from.  The premise of my question is

          4  that we're taking an existing day care center at the

          5  northwest corner of the existing site, what used to

          6  be the original site, we're moving it south of 161st

          7  Street into Concourse Gardens, which is a different

          8  neighborhood because that complex is a neighborhood

          9  unto itself, it's so large, and I'm sure that there

         10  is a need for day care services there.  That is

         11  unique to Concourse Village, Concourse Gardens, I

         12  don't remember what it is, that they will actually

         13  avail themselves of.  So there will be an absorption

         14  of the space leaving a vacuum in the old

         15  neighborhood where the day care was, that is my

         16  premise.

         17                 Now you are going to give us the hard

         18  numbers to ascertain whether or not that market

         19  reality is true.

         20                 MS. RICHROATH:  I believe that these

         21  day care center, those spaces and those participants

         22  will have the opportunity to go to this site which

         23  is two blocks away.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  No, no, I

         25  understand because I heard that argument before
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          2  that, you know, that they could walk a few blocks

          3  and go to the new place.

          4                 MS. RICHROATH:  And also, Council

          5  member, you should be aware that the ULURP for that

          6  replacement day care center went through the same

          7  Community Board and was unanimously approved through

          8  the entire process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Sure.

         10                 MS. RICHROATH:  So this issue did not

         11  arise with respect to the replacement day care

         12  center.  It did not arise until we were looking to

         13  put an addition on that to replace the day care

         14  spaces that were going to be eliminated from the

         15  court project, which were going to be an addition to

         16  day care for that entire community.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Right, but

         18  with all due respect, things, I used to be a

         19  district manager for a Community Board for five

         20  years, things go through Community Boards and then

         21  new realities and new considerations come up, and

         22  then people say, wow, you know what, we missed

         23  something, we missed the mark on that.  So, you

         24  know, I understand your point, but I don't think it

         25  necessarily takes away the underlying concern, which
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          2  is, are we in effect eliminating the spaces in a

          3  neighborhood, which I think we are.

          4                 But be that as it may, the commitment

          5  is to create a new center.  I think what is failing

          6  here is that we need to address the day care needs

          7  of that neighborhood, north of 161st Street.  I

          8  don't think that the one in Concourse Village

          9  addresses the need.

         10                 MS. RICHROATH:  Okay, and we

         11  originally proposed to have the addition, because

         12  ULURP would not be necessary and the day care spaces

         13  would be available 18 months earlier than they would

         14  have been available had the courthouse project gone

         15  forward and day care being included in it.  We have

         16  heard that the Community Board was very upset at the

         17  fact that they were south of 161st Street and not

         18  north.  And the City is committed, as long as we can

         19  get proposed sites that everybody has agreed on

         20  north of 161st Street, because we don't want to be

         21  in the position of proposing another site that

         22  everyone is upset about.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.

         24                 MS. RICHROATH:  We're looking to

         25  accommodate the elected officials and the community
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          2  and the Borough President's Office to find an

          3  appropriate site to relocate that day care center.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Good, so

          5  let's, for the record, pin this down and say that

          6  whatever responsible agency, I guess it's ACS?

          7                 MS. RICHROATH:  ACD.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  ACD, because

          9  the City makes commitments like, you know, on behalf

         10  of the Mayor and the Criminal Justice Coordinator,

         11  you speak, and it floats through the air, and it

         12  gets on our record, and then 10 years pass and we

         13  don't have a day care center.  So why don't we pin

         14  this down and say that the Agency for Child

         15  Development, if it hasn't done already, will put in

         16  writing this commitment to this community that it

         17  will work with the community to identify a site

         18  north of 161st, and we would need this letter before

         19  we vote on Monday.  And I don't think that it is

         20  unreasonable because if we're able to verbalize the

         21  commitment, I think we can document the commitment.

         22                 What do you think, Marybeth?

         23                 MS. RICHROATH:  I think in terms of

         24  working together to identify a site, that is exactly

         25  what we have been trying to do, I don't think it is
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          2  anything new and I don't think it should be a

          3  problem.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  No, I

          5  understand.  Okay, so we can get a letter from ACD

          6  in this regard?

          7                 MS. RICHROATH:  I think so.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Because we

          9  will, absolutely, I'm certain that Council Member

         10  Foster, who is committed to this issue as well, will

         11  work with you and with the community and all those

         12  involved to ensure that we identify an appropriate

         13  site.

         14                 MS. RICHROATH:  And we're looking for

         15  that input.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, so

         17  we're, just for the record, we will expect to

         18  receive a letter by Monday, by the time we vote on

         19  this item in that regard.

         20                 Let me go to - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  It would help

         22  the applicants cause greatly, if we did.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman. Let me go to the issue of traffic and

         25  parking, just so I can fully understand it, and sure
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          2  that we address all of the communities concerns.

          3                 The conditions right now are court

          4  officers, police officers, judges, family members,

          5  people who are using the court, other employees, all

          6  converging into this neighborhood, it is a major

          7  urban design problem and street design and

          8  infrastructure problem.  You mentioned that there

          9  would be, with regard to the issue of the police

         10  officer parking and conducting business in the

         11  courthouse currently, that during Phase I there

         12  would be a parking lot created on a vacant lot for

         13  the police so that they can temporarily put their

         14  vehicles there, go into the courthouse and then

         15  leave.

         16                 MS. RICHROATH:  Correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  But does

         18  that address the long term problem, where do the

         19  police vehicles end up 10 years from now when this

         20  thing is entirely built?

         21                 MS. RICHROATH:  This project includes

         22  a below grade parking lot.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Of 320 cars.

         24                 MS. RICHROATH:  Right, and at the end

         25  of Phase I it will be 240, and then Phase II
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          2  increases it to 320 at the end of the entire

          3  project.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  What is the

          5  entire parking need when it is fully operational?

          6                 MS. RICHROATH:  We have the

          7  consultants here from the, who performed the

          8  Environmental Impact Statement, they would be in a

          9  much better position to answer that question.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, great.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Identify

         12  yourself for the record, please?

         13                 MR. PARKER:  My name is Scott Parker.

         14    I'm with Firm for Edwards and Kellsey, we're

         15  another consultant to EDC and DCAS for the

         16  Environmental Impact Statement or portions of.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  What is the

         18  entire parking demand when the new courthouse

         19  complex is fully operational?

         20                 MR. PARKER:  Over and above the

         21  court- related parking demand that is in the area

         22  today, there will be an additional parking demand

         23  exerted by the proposed project in 2009, Phase II,

         24  of approximately 700 additional parking spaces.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, and
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          2  what is the parking, I feel like we're splitting

          3  hairs here, let me see if I can get, the current

          4  demand, the future demand, you said, 700 over and

          5  above the current demand; is that what you said?

          6                 MR. PARKER:  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  The future

          8  demand is 700?

          9                 MR. PARKER:  Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, so

         11  then how do we answer that, how are we answering

         12  that in this project?

         13                 MR. PARKER:  As far as provision of

         14  parking?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Yes.

         16                 MR. PARKER:  The 320 spaces to be

         17  constructed on the site are a portion of covering

         18  that parking demand.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Oh, and by

         20  the way, I'm sorry, let me interrupt you just so

         21  that we can do this math correctly, 700 above what

         22  current demand, in other words total, 700 plus what?

         23                 MR. PARKER:  I do not have the

         24  specific number of court- related parking demand

         25  within the region.  When we performed the
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          2  environmental assessments, we go out there and we

          3  actually observe the amount of parking spaces that

          4  are occupied, the number of parked cars within a

          5  quarter of a mile of the study area, so it is on-

          6  street and off- street.  We do not segregate of that

          7  existing parking demand how many are court- related

          8  vehicles, how many are community residents, how many

          9  how employees.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Pre- 2009,

         11  what is the demand that you have determined, what is

         12  that number in the area, given your observation,

         13  given your scientific observation?

         14                 MR. PARKER:  Give me a minute, I will

         15  have to recall that number.  Thank you, Fred.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  There we go.

         17                 MR. PARKER:  Okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  It's in the

         19  packet?  Oh, great, wonderful.  What page is it on?

         20                 MR. PARKER:  You will see a table

         21  that looks like this.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Ah, yes,

         23  parking supply and demand summary, Phase I, Phase

         24  II.  Okay, please, do explain, though?

         25                 MR. PARKER:  Okay.  If we look at the
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          2  Phase II, 2009 condition, when the full entire

          3  project is completed, there will be a total future

          4  supply, in other words, a nobel parking supply in

          5  the area of approximately 4,800 parking spaces, that

          6  includes on street and publicly accessible off-

          7  street parking spaces.  The future supply of

          8  parking, once the project is constructed would

          9  increase to 4,866.  Now the reason there is a

         10  discrepancy in the difference between that and the

         11  320 spaces that would be constructed, there is also

         12  a displacement of the existing parking places that

         13  are on the site today.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.

         15                 MR. PARKER:  There is approximately

         16  230 parking spaces on the project site today.  Once

         17  we build over those, those spaces will be

         18  eliminated, replaced with 320 spaces.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  For a net

         20  gain?

         21                 MR. PARKER:  For, that would be - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Of 80 or 90

         23  spots?

         24                 MR. PARKER: - -  that would be a net

         25  gain of 90.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Ninety

          3  spots.

          4                 MR. PARKER:  But in addition with

          5  some of the restriction or elimination of legal

          6  parking spaces adjacent to the building, for the

          7  security issues, especially along Sherman and 161st

          8  Street, there will be an additional loss of legal

          9  space that various from hour to hour depending on

         10  the parking restrictions.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  That chips

         12  into that net gain of 90, or that is not factored

         13  in?

         14                 MR. PARKER:  That reduces the net

         15  gain of 90 to, basically, a net gain of about 60.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So how bad

         17  are we in terms of parking then, as a professional

         18  in the field?

         19                 MR. PARKER:  The on- street parking

         20  today, is over utilized.  There is an excess demand

         21  and excess utilization based on legal capacity.

         22  Legal capacity being defined as when there is no

         23  alternate side of the street cleaning restrictions

         24  or no peak period restrictions and so on.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Right, ideal
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          2  conditions.

          3                 MR. PARKER:  Ideal conditions, yes,

          4  there is, based on legal spaces, yes, there is an

          5  excess demand.  They're looking at the off- street

          6  parking facilities, there is a significant under

          7  utilization of existing off- street facilities.

          8  Particularly of great note, the parking garage in

          9  the Concourse Plaza, that contains approximately

         10  1,205 parking spaces, physical spaces within that

         11  garage and the surface lot.  Observations out there

         12  during various time periods, there is generally in

         13  excess of 500 some odd spaces available for use

         14  within that facility.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Across the

         16  street at Concourse Plaza.

         17                 MR. PARKER:  Correct.  Now the

         18  traffic assignments, when we looked at the number of

         19  additional vehicles that would be entering the study

         20  area and requiring parking, they were assigned to

         21  specific facilities, the facilities within the

         22  project itself, which are going to be for judges,

         23  and employees, and a reserved portion of those

         24  spaces for the police officers and court personnel

         25  that are currently parking on 161st Street, they
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          2  will be accommodated within the parking garage

          3  itself upon completion to alleviate a lot of that

          4  double parking congestion on 161st Street.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Does that

          6  meet the entire need of the building, the spots

          7  underneath the plaza?

          8                 MR. PARKER:  The spaces that will be

          9  reserved, we feel are going to meet those needs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  How many

         11  would those be?

         12                 MR. PARKER:  Under Phase I, Marybeth,

         13  correct me if I'm wrong, the agreement was 60 spaces

         14  of the 240 would be reserved for those police

         15  officers and other court officials that are there

         16  for temporary business on occasional times.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  What is that

         18  number, again, I'm sorry?

         19                 MR. PARKER:  That is 60, 6- 0.  There

         20  is 240 parking spaces to be constructed under Phase

         21  I, of which, 60 will be allocated for the use of the

         22  officers that are appearing for court business and

         23  any other officials that are there on a temporary

         24  basis.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So let's get
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          2  to the bottom line, and, Mr. Parker, what is the

          3  number, what is the shortage, where are we failing

          4  in the year 2009?

          5                 MR. PARKER:  Now, everything here is

          6  referring to the mid- morning period, which is the

          7  critical period where demand exceeds supply to the

          8  greatest extent.  Project demand, new, over and

          9  above what there is today with the court activities,

         10  would be approximately 758 additional parking spaces

         11  required to accommodate the court- related activity,

         12  which means we would have now a total demand

         13  existing in the background plus the project of 5,146

         14  parking spaces within the study area, meaning that

         15  we would have a shortfall of 280 parking spaces.  So

         16  if every single legal space was occupied during that

         17  time, there would still be 280 vehicles that would

         18  not be able to find a legal parking space within a

         19  quarter of a mile study area.

         20                 Now to address this issue there is

         21  significant restrictions for alternate side cleaning

         22  and various on- street regulations.  The New York

         23  City Department of Sanitation had recently retooled

         24  their cleaning operations so that they could be a

         25  little more responsive to getting things done
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          2  quickly. Previously most of the parking regulations

          3  were a three- hour window, predominantly, from 8:00

          4  to 11:00 or 11:00 to 2:00. Subsequent to those

          5  changes they split those periods in half, where a

          6  portion of that time, or a portion of those spaces

          7  we clean from 8:00 to 9:30, additional spaces will

          8  then be cleaned from 9:30 to 11:00, thereby

          9  increasing the amount of legal parking spaces that

         10  are available.

         11                 Now we had several meetings

         12  coordinating with the Department of Sanitation to

         13  see what we could work out to further enhance that

         14  program to legalize more spaces during the time

         15  periods where the demand would be most excessive,

         16  i.e., the mid morning period.  We went through and

         17  developed a number of scenarios that we reviewed

         18  with them, a lot of which were rejected because they

         19  just didn't meet the goals of providing enough legal

         20  parking.  Others because they just could not fit

         21  that activity under their existing operations, they

         22  physically could not do the cleaning operations.

         23                 What tipped the scale to allow us to

         24  work something out was an agreement on the City's

         25  part to provide additional funding for additional
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          2  personnel and additional street sweepers, additional

          3  mechanical brooms, to allow them to cover more area

          4  during shorter time periods within this District #4.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So there

          6  will be a special- -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

          8  Carrion, if we could both go next door, cast our

          9  housekeeping vote and then come back - -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: - -  I will allow

         12  Council Member Wooten, or ask her to Chair the

         13  meeting while we're gone.

         14                 MR. PARKER:  Would you prefer I hold

         15  that thought until you return?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Yes, please,

         17  thank you.

         18                 MR. PARKER:  Certainly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, so then

         20  what we will do is we will adjourn for however long

         21  it takes us, two or three minutes, so if you could

         22  just bear with us, recess, I'm sorry, recess for two

         23  minutes.  That doesn't mean you can go play in the

         24  hall or anything.

         25                 Back on the record, I'm just going to
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          2  reset the scene for those who lost their way or are

          3  watching at home.  This is the Subcommittee on

          4  Landmarks, Public Sitings and Maritime Uses of the

          5  City Council Committee on Land Use.  I'm Council

          6  Member John Sabini, I Chair the Subcommittee, the

          7  full Land Use Committee is Chaired by June Eisland

          8  of the Bronx.  We're joined by members of the

          9  Subcommittee today, Council Member Priscilla Wooten

         10  of Brooklyn, Council Member Adolfo Carrion, Jr. Of

         11  the Bronx.  Also sitting in with us today, also,

         12  Council Member Bill Perkins has been popping in and

         13  out, and we're joined today, also by Council Member

         14  Wendell Foster.  We're hearing an item affecting his

         15  district, or items affecting his district.

         16                 The items that we're in the middle of

         17  a hearing on now, we have had other items before us,

         18  as well, are Land Use Nos. 539 through 544, in Bronx

         19  Community Board #4, Council Member Foster's

         20  District, a package of items that basically deals

         21  with the construction of a court facility and

         22  parking facilities for the Bronx.  We have two

         23  witnesses in front of us, Marybeth Richroath from

         24  the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice Coordinator,

         25  and Jay Bargmann from RV Architects, and I believe

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            102

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  someone else, Scott Parker from the Traffic

          3  Consultant, we are hearing questions from Council

          4  Member Carrion.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman.

          7                 MR. PARKER:  Okay, where were we?

          8  The net results of all of this have indicated that

          9  there would be that shortfall of 280 spaces to

         10  accommodate, legally accommodate all the demand that

         11  would be in the area.  We were coordinating with the

         12  Department of Sanitation to modify the way they do

         13  their operations so that we could legalize a greater

         14  portion of the existing on- street parking to free

         15  some of that space up as one of the measures to

         16  mitigate this parking condition.

         17                 After looking at a number of

         18  different scenarios, there is one combination of

         19  various changes where they would be intensifying

         20  some of their cleaning operations in that 7:30 to

         21  8:00.  There are some areas that they only look at

         22  or only clean for one half- hour window, they would

         23  be intensifying the operations where they will be

         24  doing things just before the major influx of all the

         25  court- related parking activity would occur.  They
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          2  would minimize the amount of cleaning activity that

          3  would be occurring between the 9:30 and 11:00

          4  period, which is when our peak demand was projected

          5  to occur, shifting some of that cleaning activity

          6  into the period between 11:00 and 2:00, which in

          7  actuality is called 11:00 to 2:00, but it actually

          8  occurs between 11:30 and 1:30 just by their

          9  schedule.  By moving individual zones and changing

         10  the restrictions we're able to, during that critical

         11  mid- morning period legalize enough parking spaces

         12  so that there would now be within a quarter of a

         13  mile area an excess of 123 legal parking spaces.

         14                 Now there is a number of additional

         15  items that have been worked into this, into the

         16  whole parking scenario to help alleviate this

         17  situation, some of which Marybeth had addressed

         18  earlier, providing parking inside the building or

         19  inside the site and temporary parking during

         20  construction for the police officers and other court

         21  vehicles to get them off the street and increase the

         22  supply by approximately 40 spaces during

         23  construction, 60 spaces after Phase I is completed.

         24                 In addition to increasing an

         25  awareness that is given to people that is visiting
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          2  the court, about places to park, use of the off-

          3  street parking facilities, rather than trying to

          4  find a place on- street, jurors for example.  When

          5  perspective jurors receive their summons and package

          6  of information they're in other areas, particularly

          7  like Downtown Brooklyn, they're strongly discouraged

          8  from bringing their private automobiles and

          9  encouraged to use mass transit, provided with

         10  transit maps, station locations and the like, which

         11  we have not quantified what effect that would have,

         12  that is a very difficult thing to do, if not nothing

         13  but crystal balling, but we can say that that will

         14  have some level of positive improvement here.

         15                 I think one thing that is important

         16  to note, in doing this analysis we made a baseline

         17  assumption in all things that the level of activity

         18  per court part, per court room that exists today in

         19  the overcrowded, over caseload conditions would

         20  carry over into the future and that every single

         21  court part that is built subsequent as part of this

         22  project would maintain that same level of activity.

         23  One of the purposes of the court master plan was to

         24  spread the caseloads out to a slightly more

         25  reasonable level so that individual cases can
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          2  receive the proper attention that they need, i.e.,

          3  there will be fewer cases handle in each specific

          4  court room on a particular day.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  But you

          6  study assumption was that it would remain at the

          7  same level?

          8                 MR. PARKER:  Correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So you were

         10  trying to be conservative.

         11                 MR. PARKER:  We were trying to be

         12  conservative in that regard.  So these numbers that

         13  I'm running by you here, this 758 increase in demand

         14  is very likely to be somewhat lower than that when

         15  2009 does come around.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  You hope.

         17                 MR. PARKER:  Court- related demand I

         18  would hope, if caseload increases continue at their

         19  currently projected levels and so on and so on,

         20  then, if all else remains as projected, yes, they

         21  will be lower than what we have incorporated into

         22  this analysis.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.  Just

         24  two quick responses to that.  One is that the City

         25  often creates special districts for cleaning.  I
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          2  know that the major commercial strips are cleaned

          3  from midnight to eight, there could be some

          4  additional accommodation of the existing special

          5  cleaning district on 161st Street, I don't know.

          6  This way there is no interruption during the day,

          7  because if you're cleaning from 11:30 to 12:30

          8  approximately, people are not going to move their

          9  cars, I mean, I guess they're going to move their

         10  cars, double park, wait around, cause, you know,

         11  more traffic.

         12                 MR. PARKER:  There will be some level

         13  as there is today, there is some level of that that

         14  occurs today.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Right.

         16                 MR. PARKER:  I would hazard to say

         17  that there will be some level of that type of

         18  occurrence in the future.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  I'm just

         20  wondering if -                CHAIRPERSON SABINI:

         21  Council Member Carrion, let me just interject one

         22  thing, I told you early that we were going to give

         23  you a lot of rope, but we have students here from

         24  Saint Angela's who have to leave, and they're going

         25  to be able to vote soon, and you're not time
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          2  limited, so you might want to take that into account

          3  in making them wait.  They're also judges here who,

          4  let's hope you don't have to appear before them, but

          5  again, they want to get back to their work, as well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  They're all

          7  my friends.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So I'm just

          9  cautioning you that there are people who could give

         10  you a lot of trouble if you continue to ask these

         11  questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  I'm sure

         13  that they appreciate my line of questioning.  But

         14  notwithstanding, I understand people's time

         15  limitations.  I do, however, believe that some of

         16  these issues are so important that I certainly don't

         17  want to let them go, we have just a few days until

         18  Monday where we sunset, the clock sunsets, I mean,

         19  it's over and we have to vote. And we want to make

         20  sure that if we say yes to this, that we achieved

         21  certain agreements from the City and the State and

         22  all the other parties.

         23                 That said, I will come back to some

         24  other questions, the issue of local labor

         25  participation, you know, I think that there are some
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          2  gaps there that need to be answered and pinned down.

          3  I think there are issues with regard to urban design

          4  and the whole strategy of urban design, and how

          5  we're, what is the scheme in relation to the rest of

          6  the area.  You know, you kind of talked about

          7  planting the building there and fronting it on 161st

          8  Street, you know, sort of stacking it toward the

          9  edge and creating a plaza, but how does that relate

         10  to future development, current, existing, you know,

         11  buildings there?  And in a larger sense, the goals

         12  of Bronx Center, which we wanted to create a defined

         13  street scape that made sense for pedestrians and

         14  cars, and architecturally made sense in terms of

         15  light and air, and a number of other things, you

         16  know.

         17                 But then the issue of retail, the

         18  issue of retail is of great concern to me.  I don't

         19  how I can come back to these questions, Mr.

         20  Chairman, and continue to, can we have the students

         21  come up and then maybe have these folks stick around

         22  and then come back?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I want to have

         24  some continuity to your questions, all I ask you to

         25  do is to consider that there are people here on a
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          2  time clock, and if you can ask those questions and

          3  the answers be given in a brief manner, then let's

          4  do them

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  But if we're

          7  going to be here for another half an hour, that is a

          8  problem.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  I appreciate

         10  that.  Did you factor in the temporary need in your

         11  parking calculations, did you factor in the

         12  temporary nature, the need of police vehicles as

         13  they come and go for police work and court- related

         14  work?

         15                 MR. PARKER:  The forty spaces that

         16  will be put on that surface lot in addition, were

         17  not factored into this analysis.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  What I'm

         19  getting at is all these illegally parked police

         20  vehicles, - -

         21                 MR. PARKER:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: - -  did you

         23  count them and say, this is part of the parking

         24  need?

         25                 MR. PARKER:  At every single block
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          2  face, at four periods during the day, - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  You did?

          4                 MR. PARKER: - -  we have hard

          5  observations of the number of vehicles that are

          6  parked on that block face.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, so the

          8  short answer is yes.

          9                 MR. PARKER:  Yes, but we did not

         10  differentiate between police vehicles and non-

         11  police vehicles.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Oh, okay, so

         13  every vehicle.

         14                 MR. PARKER:  Every vehicle.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Local labor

         16  participation, you talked about 2,000 construction

         17  jobs for the Bronx during construction.  You

         18  mentioned a Mr. Williams, I want to know who that

         19  person is, and then you talked about 517 permanent,

         20  civil service jobs for the Bronx.  Now, you know,

         21  then you talked about the civil service rules being

         22  applicable, which means that it is open to

         23  everybody.  But let's go to the 2,000 construction

         24  jobs for the Bronx during construction, I want you

         25  to clarify that because, you know, we do this all
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          2  the time, how many jobs is the community going to

          3  get?  Well, you know, it is going to create 2,000

          4  jobs for your borough, is it, indeed, for the

          5  borough, or is it 2,000 construction jobs that will

          6  happen to be in the Bronx?

          7                 MS. RICHROATH:  It will be 2,000

          8  construction related jobs that will be in the Bronx.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, that

         10  is very important for people to understand that it

         11  is not for the Bronx, it is in the Bronx.  It's a

         12  very important, fine distinction, because now, and

         13  my friends in labor, I just canceled a meeting with

         14  Brian McLoughlin, I postponed it, we were supposed

         15  to meet at 1:30, I understand the need to create

         16  jobs for skilled labor here in the City, and we're

         17  undergoing construction, but we want to be clear,

         18  Mr. Chairman, that these are not 2,000 construction

         19  jobs for that community, they're 2,000 construction

         20  jobs in that community.  So the question still

         21  remains, what then is the benefit to this community

         22  during the construction phase?

         23                 MS. RICHROATH:  If I may, the

         24  construction managers contract required that 10

         25  percent of the jobs that are left for general
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          2  conditions surrounding the project be left to MWBE

          3  qualified contractors.  It also provided that there

          4  needed to be a liaison, hired by the construction

          5  manager, which I am informed has already been done,

          6  who is going to be located at the project so that he

          7  can give, he or she can give information to the

          8  community about the status of the ongoing

          9  construction but also be the point person to

         10  identify what jobs would be available and then help

         11  people to meet whatever the criteria might be so

         12  that you would qualify for them.

         13                 We also got the Department of

         14  Business Services involved and brought the

         15  representative to the various Community Board

         16  Offices and also to the Borough President's Office

         17  so that people who were interested in qualifying for

         18  those jobs would know what the qualifications were

         19  that they had to meet so that they could be

         20  qualified as MWBE.  That is just with respect to the

         21  construction manager.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.

         23                 MS. RICHROATH:  Now that the

         24  Dormitory Authority is taking over the construction,

         25  they have an Office of Opportunities Program.  They
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          2  require that their construction contract set aside

          3  15 percent of the contract opportunities within that

          4  overall construction contract for MBE firms and an

          5  additional 5 percent for WBE firms.  They also have

          6  a goal that 35 percent of the workforce be comprised

          7  of minorities and women.  Of course there are

          8  qualifications to be certified as an MBE or a WBE,

          9  that is where Mr. Williams comes in.

         10                 I spoke to him yesterday, Dennis

         11  Williams is employed by DASNY's Office of

         12  Opportunity.  He is assigned to liaison with the

         13  community, identify minority and women business

         14  enterprises that are interested in being involved in

         15  this construction process and work with them so that

         16  they can meet the criteria that DASNY sets.  So we

         17  have both a person who is going, who has been hired

         18  by the construction manager to liaison with the

         19  community and let people know what the requirements

         20  are and help them meet them, as well as Mr.

         21  Williams, who is a DASNY employee.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, that

         23  is during the construction?

         24                 MS. RICHROATH:  Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  The 35
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          2  percent, you mentioned that DASNY carves out, could

          3  you repeat that, I'm not entirely clear on that?

          4                 MS. RICHROATH:  They set a goal that

          5  35 percent of the workforce, that is actually the

          6  construction workforce at any given time, be

          7  comprised of minorities and women.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  The entire

          9  DASNY workforce during construction - -

         10                 MS. RICHROATH:  No, no, no, the

         11  construction workforce for this project.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  The entire

         13  construction workforce on- site, 35 percent minority

         14   - -

         15                 MS. RICHROATH:  And women, or women.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: - -  minority

         17  and women, yes.

         18                 MS. RICHROATH:  That's there goal.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  That's a

         20  goal, it's a goal, and what happens if they don't

         21  achieve the goal, you slap them on the hand, right?

         22  I mean what happens, I don't want to be cynical, you

         23  know, the communities are exhausted to be honest

         24  with you, communities are exhausted in terms of

         25  giving, giving, giving, watching things go by,
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          2  people come in, they come into the community, they

          3  work, they gain, they take their salaries and they

          4  leave, and they spend little money there, and there

          5  are little jobs left behind, that's reality.  And so

          6  we need to ensure that there are real commitments,

          7  real commitments, but there is a 35 percent goal, I

          8  will leave this alone for the moment, I think that

          9  we can come back before we vote on Monday or later

         10  on during this hearing, because I don't want to lose

         11  the opportunity to visit the retail issue.

         12                 The response to the community has

         13  been, we can't do retail across the street at the

         14  HRA building, right, essentially on the corner of

         15  Morris and 161st Street?

         16                 MS. RICHROATH:  That is correct.

         17  There was a meeting with the Chair of the Land Use

         18  Committee where the community brought that to our

         19  attention.  We responded in writing to Council

         20  Member Eisland and Council Member Foster that that

         21  is not a City- owned building, that is a building

         22  that has leased space.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Before you go

         24  forward, because you mentioned this before and I

         25  think I want to technically correct you, unless I'm
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          2  wrong, that the meeting that you had on this, this

          3  meeting was a meeting of the Bronx Delegation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Which is Chaired

          6  by Councilwoman Eisland who happens to also be Chair

          7  of the Land Use Committee.  It was not a meeting of

          8  the Land Use Committee, since I sit on the Land Use

          9  Committee and Council Member Wooten sits on the Land

         10  Use Committee, we're not party to that, I believe

         11  since this is a county- wide facility, that you met

         12  with the Bronx Delegation just as when Queens courts

         13  were being built, you met with the Queens

         14  Delegation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  That is

         16  correct, Mr. Chairman, I was part of that meeting.

         17                 MS. RICHROATH:  Okay, I'm sorry.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  That doesn't

         19  mean that Council Member Eisland is no longer Chair

         20  of the Land Use Committee, she is, but she also

         21  serves as Chair of the Bronx Delegation, it was a

         22  Delegation meeting, not a Land Use Committee

         23  meeting, because if it was a Land Use Committee

         24  meeting then you would have been in violation of the

         25  open meeting laws of the State of New York and of
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          2  the City of New York.

          3                 So just go on, I just want to correct

          4  you for the record.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So why

          6  couldn't we develop retail across the street and

          7  down the block?

          8                 MS. RICHROATH:  Okay, - -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  It's not a

         10  City- owned building, there was a proposal to build,

         11  to add retail.

         12                 MS. RICHROATH: - -  the community

         13  suggested a building across the street, which is

         14  currently, the City has leases for, I believe, it's

         15  140,000 square feet of space in that building that

         16  runs through 2006, and an additional 17,000 square

         17  feet of space that runs through 2007.  Since it is

         18  privately owned the City has no ability - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So you're

         20  essentially saying that the market place will take

         21  care of it, if retail wants to go there, it will.

         22                 MS. RICHROATH:  To that particular

         23  building?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Yes.

         25                 MS. RICHROATH:  Well the landlord
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          2  would have to allow it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  No, no, that

          4  is what I'm saying, the marketplace, that the

          5  marketplace should take care of it, if it is a good

          6  retail location.

          7                 MS. RICHROATH:  Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So

          9  therefore, you're willing to work to do, to create

         10  retail opportunities within a quarter- mile?

         11                 MS. RICHROATH:  Okay, because, those

         12  were two different proposals, we were following up

         13  on a suggestion out of the meeting that we had, that

         14  suggested that particular location as a relocation

         15  opportunity for the businesses that were being

         16  relocated as a result of this project.  Prior, you

         17  know, different from that is the retail development

         18  that would have been within the project, and what we

         19  were trying, what we have a commitment to do from

         20  the Economic Development Corporation is to develop

         21  other City owned properties within a quarter- mile

         22  radius of the courthouse site, and they're going to

         23  put that out in a Request for Proposals to encourage

         24  private, retail development within a quarter- mile

         25  radius of the site.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, and it

          3  was to the equivalent of 25,000 square feet.

          4                 MS. RICHROATH:  At least, 25,000.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  And the

          6  original plan for the retail in the building was how

          7  many square feet?

          8                 MS. RICHROATH:  Twenty- five hundred.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Twenty- five

         10  hundred?

         11                 MS. RICHROATH:  Oh, it was 10,000,

         12  I'm sorry.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Ten

         14  thousand, so it's more, but it is all market driven.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

         16  Carrion, can we, we want to have you fully briefed

         17  on this, you're a member of the Subcommittee, but we

         18  want to also move on a little bit, so - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  I

         20  understand.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: - -  you reach

         22  out question answered yet, your pertinent questions

         23  answered.  I think they're going to come back.  If

         24  we recess, you are going to come back?

         25                 MS. RICHROATH:  Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  Can we

          3  bring on some more witnesses here?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Sure, sure,

          5  sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  All right, I'm

          9  going to tell you this is out of order because they

         10  really do have to leave and they spent the whole day

         11  learning something here, but they want to

         12  participate as well, so I want to ask the students

         13  and faculty of Saint Angela Merici School to come

         14  forward to the table.  That would be Patrick Kelly

         15  the principal and is there a Chriscensia Valdez, and

         16  one of the students is going to testify, tell us

         17  your name for the record, please?

         18                 MS. MATTHEWS:  My name is Kimberly

         19  Matthews.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Kimberly

         21  Matthews, okay, have you filled out an appearance

         22  slip?

         23                 MR. KELLY:  No, she did not.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, you're

         25  going to have to do that before you leave.  State
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          2  your names for the record, please?

          3                 MR. KELLY:  Patrick Kelly, I'm

          4  Principal at Saint Angela Merici.

          5                 MS. MATTHEWS: Kimberly Matthews, I

          6  attend Saint Angel Merici.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Speak up into

          8  the mic, otherwise we can't hear you.

          9                 MS. MATTHEWS:  My name is Kimberly

         10  Matthews, and I attend Saint Angela Merici.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

         12                 MS. VALDEZ:  Good afternoon.  I'm

         13  Mrs. Chriscensia Valdez, Parent Association

         14  President of Saint Angela Merici School.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, proceed.

         16                 MR. KELLY:  Thank you for the

         17  opportunity to speak to the Council.  I appreciate

         18  Councilman Carrion, all of your questions, this is a

         19  massive, massive project, which is why I would beg

         20  the Council to get everybody to slow down until all

         21  of the issues are explored.  To say that there has

         22  to be a vote on Monday is a fiction, this is a

         23  massive project which will impact on the lives of

         24  everyone in that area of the Bronx for generations.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Principal Kelly,
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          2  before you continue, understand that under the

          3  City's Uniformed Land Use Procedures there are

          4  clocks involved.

          5                 MR. KELLY:  I understand that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And the clock

          7  will expire, so if there is no vote, it's like

          8  turning it down.

          9                 MR. KELLY:  I understand.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm sorry?  If

         11  there is no vote, we approve it, our Counsel has,

         12  our Land Use Director, that is right, under the

         13  Charter if we don't vote, it has an approval, the

         14  City Planning recommendation stands and I'm glad Ms.

         15  Benjamin corrected me on it.

         16                 MR. KELLY:  I would point out that

         17  the Community Board #4 voted down this project, that

         18  has not been mentioned this morning and this

         19  afternoon's conference.

         20                 We, at Saint Angela's, have

         21  difficulties with this project based on the

         22  massiveness of it.  You're asking the immediate

         23  community to take on a million square foot building

         24  in the Criminal Court itself.  In addition, you're

         25  asking the immediate location to seat a high school
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          2  which will serve 750 children.

          3                 Immediately to the north to our

          4  school is CES 35, and on that same square block is

          5  166, the three of us combined already serve 2,500

          6  children.  So what you're asking this small four

          7  block area to do, is to serve the educational needs

          8  of over 3,000 kids, as well as the Administration of

          9  Criminal Justice in the Bronx, it seems to me that

         10  that is a wee bit excessive, to have four major

         11  educational institutions, one on top of the other,

         12  on three square blocks, from an urban planning

         13  standpoint, does not make a great deal of sense to

         14  me.  To further put on two other square blocks the

         15  biggest public works project in the Bronx directly

         16  across the street from all those schools, simply

         17  boggles my mind.  The neighborhood is already

         18  weighed down with the amount of traffic, that the

         19  present court facilities require, so there are

         20  massive needs that need to be addressed before this

         21  project goes through.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Principal Kelly,

         23  just let me, for the record, this is your school

         24  here.

         25                 MR. KELLY:  Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And this is PS

          3  35.

          4                 MR. KELLY:  Correct, elementary K to

          5  4, Hilda Gudiaz (phonetic) is the Principal.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Roberta

          7  Clemente.

          8                 MR. KELLY:  One sixty- six, that is

          9  another school.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Is there another

         11  school?

         12                 MR. KELLY:  The new one that is going

         13  in would be the fourth school.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  That is it?

         15                 MR. KELLY:  That is it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  That's a lot.

         17                 MR. KELLY:  Four schools, three

         18  blocks.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  All right, thank

         20  you.

         21                 MS. MATTHEWS:  Basically, I think I

         22  speak for all the eighth graders when I say, that we

         23  really don't have a problem with the fourth school

         24  being built, it is just that the court, it is going

         25  to be a big change for us.  And I don't think it's
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          2  fair, I really don't think it's fair that the court

          3  should be built, because look at the other little

          4  kids, it's going to be a distraction for them when

          5  they're learning.  All the construction, you hear

          6  all the workers yelling and talking, I mean, it's

          7  too much.  The students should be able to learn in

          8  peace without hearing all the construction, and I'm

          9  sure there are other places in the Bronx where this

         10  court can be built.  And that is it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Ms. Valdez.

         12                 MRS. VALDEZ:  Mrs. Valdez.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm sorry.

         14                 MRS. VALDEZ:  Saint Angela Merici is

         15  the closest school to this proposed Criminal

         16  Courthouse.  I'm opposed to it. I am a mother, I'm a

         17  wife, and I'm a concerned resident.  I have been

         18  living in this neighborhood for 19 years.  You're

         19  talking about putting this one point whatever square

         20  foot building by schools.  The children, the lower

         21  children in the ECC already see the blue bus coming

         22  in every day and they know that is for bad people.

         23  So then you are going to have an increase of those

         24  bad buses coming in every day, into the sally port,

         25  which is not supposed to be seen, but driving by,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            126

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  the prisoners are always banging and yelling and it

          3  is very disruptive to the children.

          4                 Talk about rat abatement, in that

          5  area there is a lot of rats as it is.  I know prior

          6  to the building and the demolition of this building,

          7  rat abatement is supposed to be in place, and I hope

          8  that when they say in place that it will be done

          9  properly, we don't need rats coming from outside

         10  into our schools, biting our children, eating our

         11  food in the cafeteria, or whatever rats like to do.

         12                 We also would like the 44th Precinct

         13  to furnish us with crossing guards.  You're talking

         14  about having increased traffic, not enough parking

         15  in the area, we need to have crossing guards on the

         16  corner of 162nd and Morris, and perhaps 161st and

         17  Morris, which would also put into place where the

         18  new day care center is going to be, so that would be

         19  a double for us, a positive for us, because children

         20  have to be crossed, and the way the lighting

         21  situation is now, as I have already heard the

         22  proposed way they are going to change the lighting

         23  and all the other stuff, but I would like to see it

         24  done or try it first before we can be able to assess

         25  it.
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          2                 We also want security, 24- hour

          3  security during the process, after the process,

          4  because there is a lot of bad element in the area as

          5  it is, and this building would attract more bad

          6  element into the area, so we would like 24- hour

          7  security guard in place at all times.

          8                 And just my last general statement

          9  is, this proposed Criminal Court Building is coming

         10  into our community, but what is the community

         11  getting out of this building?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

         13    Questions from the panel?  Okay, thank you very

         14  much for your input and your patience today.  And I

         15  want to thank the students from Saint Angela Merici

         16  School for attending, and hopefully, you know, you

         17  will be able to see this at home on Channel 74 if

         18  you have cable TV, and you see that we in

         19  government, and News 12 Bronx, I'm sorry, News 12 in

         20  the Bronx.  We don't have our own news station in

         21  Queens yet, so I'm not use to having it.  Not that

         22  any of us ever get on TV or anything.  But we want

         23  to thank you for your input today, and we're going

         24  to hear more witnesses.  You're welcome to stay or

         25  to come back.
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          2                 MR. KELLY:  We need to be going, with

          3  your permission?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

          5                 MR. KELLY:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  While they leave

          7  the Chamber, we will just give them a minute before

          8  I call up the witnesses, because it is going to be a

          9  little noisy.

         10                 Zimmermann, Borough President's

         11  Office, Mr. Zimmermann.  State your name for the

         12  record, please?

         13                 MR. ZIMMERMANN:  My name is Bernd

         14  Zimmermann.  I'm the Director of the Bureau of

         15  Planning and Development for Bronx Borough President

         16  Fernando Ferrer, and I am reading the following

         17  statement on his behalf.

         18                  "Chairman Sabini and members of the

         19  Committee, good afternoon by now, it's not morning

         20  anymore.  In my ULURP Report to the City Planning

         21  Commission I have expressed my support for the

         22  building by remaining mindful of its community

         23  impacts both positive and negative.  I will not

         24  repeat point by point the specific recommendations

         25  which I have laid out there, but will speak to
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          2  additional conditions which I ask you to impose on

          3  this project before you vote it out.

          4                 The conditions that I ask you to

          5  establish aim at enhancing the critical role which

          6  this structure will play in the positive process of

          7  rebuilding this surrounding community and the

          8  quality of the public realm on East 161st Street,

          9  one of the most important streets of Bronx Center.

         10                 The contextual relationship of a

         11  proposed project is clearly in the purview of ULURP

         12  and in this case the two overriding issues are:

         13  Traffic and street context.

         14                 The intersection of East 161st Street

         15  and the Grand Concourse is a traffic hot spot.  The

         16  current and future traffic conditions on East 161st

         17  Street are very troublesome.  Almost daily illegally

         18  double and triple parked police vehicles or private

         19  cars with police and/or OCA shields create gridlock

         20  conditions.  This occurs in "No Standing" zones, at

         21  fire hydrants, in pedestrian cross walks, and ramps

         22  for the handicapped in total disregard of the chaos

         23  this creates.

         24                 The "No Parking" regulations were put

         25  in place with the advent of the Concourse Plaza
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          2  shopping center, at its time the first major private

          3  investment in commercial real estate in the South

          4  Bronx in over 30 years.

          5                 While I am pleased that while the

          6  project was before the Planning Commission the

          7  applicant has responded to my request to provide

          8  parking space for police which is conducting

          9  business in the court by setting aside 60 spaces in

         10  the new garage, I am certain that this may not be

         11  enough to solve the problem.  While the spaces may

         12  be sufficient in theory, there is no guarantee that

         13  the police will actually be using them.  It is more

         14  probably that the current practice will continue for

         15  convenience.  Parking regulations do not seem to be

         16  enforced with respect to police or other official

         17  cars.

         18                 I therefore ask you to commit the OCA

         19  to recall all shields and provide employees who must

         20  have a parking space with off- street parking

         21  instead, either in the new garage where there are

         22  180 spaces left after the 60 car set- aside for

         23  police or across the street in the privately

         24  operated garage in Concourse Plaza.  Up to 500

         25  excess parking spaces are available there.  This at
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          2  least will assure that judges and court officers

          3  will not contribute to the problem.

          4                 If the traffic situation is not

          5  addressed effectively, traffic flow and goods

          6  movement in the Bronx on this important east/west

          7  truck traffic route will be severely impeded and

          8  additionally the economic survival of the Concourse

          9  Plaza shopping center will be put at risk in a major

         10  way.  Traffic flow and access must be preserved to

         11  this tax paying enterprise. Parking needs of civil

         12  servants should not have preference over needs of

         13  business which provides the tax base for the City of

         14  New York.

         15                 Regarding this concern we have a

         16  letter on file from the owner of the "Food Bazaar,"

         17  the new supermarket which will occupy the former

         18  50,000 square foot Walbaum's store in January of

         19  2000, who asked for the protection of his interest.

         20  Ease of access is vital to his and other businesses

         21  of this shopping complex.

         22                 Additionally, the quality of life,

         23  for the surrounding residential neighborhood, is at

         24  stake.  The competition between residents, the

         25  police, and public employees for on- street parking
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          2  has a destabilizing affect on neighborhoods where

          3  off street residential parking hardly exists and

          4  where the retention of upwardly mobile households is

          5  key to neighborhood vitality and stability.

          6                 Related to this matter is the timing

          7  of the reconstruction of the 161st Street Concourse

          8  underpass.  That project will coincide with the

          9  construction schedule for the new courthouse.  When

         10  the tunnel will be closed to traffic the

         11  neighborhood will be faced with an absolute traffic

         12  nightmare.  For years I have warned against this

         13  eventuality and in conjunction with Community Board

         14  Nos. 1 and 4 advocated for the timely replacement of

         15  the demolished 153rd Street Bridge.

         16                 While this bridge needs to be

         17  replaced in its own right, it would provide much

         18  needed mitigation in conjunction with these two

         19  projects now.  It has been in planning and on and

         20  off in the City's budget for over 15 years.  Only

         21  recently it has again been postponed from FY 2001 to

         22  FY 2004.  It must be accelerated in light of the

         23  emerging calamity.  I urge the Council to obtain

         24  both a funding commitment for and a commitment to

         25  commence the construction of this bridge in FY 2001
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          2  or as soon as possible.

          3                 The relationship of the new complex

          4  to the street is the second major issue.  Measures

          5  must be in place that mitigate against the

          6  enlargement of a "dead zone" at night on the street

          7  caused by the existing criminal court and

          8  governmental office building between Sherman and

          9  Sheridan Avenues.

         10                 The loss of retail space on the

         11  ground floor of the building is a severe set back to

         12  the community and goes against the interest of

         13  creating a pedestrian friendly and safe street

         14  environment.  This loss is compounded by the fact

         15  that the building will now be surrounded by 220

         16  bollards along 1,140 linear feet of sidewalk.

         17                 The applicant has represented that $2

         18  million, the equivalent of the cost for the

         19  provision of retail space in the new building, will

         20  be made available for street scape improvements

         21  between the Concourse Bridge and Park Avenue to the

         22  east.

         23                 Various street and other improvement

         24  projects along East 161st Street are currently in

         25  planning or in progress, and it is therefore
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          2  essential that the $2 million pledgets will not only

          3  be committed, but become the catalyst for a

          4  coordinated, well designed street improvement

          5  project for the blocks bounded by River Avenue in

          6  the west to Park Avenue in the east.

          7                 I have allocated $300,000 in design

          8  and $1.3 million in construction funds for Lou

          9  Gehrig Plaza as the finishing element of the

         10  Concourse Bridge project and envisioned that this

         11  project will set the tone for the above mentioned

         12  blocks.

         13                 I ask the Council for its leadership

         14  on this matter as well and request that the

         15  applicant provide the commitments of the DOT, or

         16  DASNY who will undertake the courthouse project, to

         17  plan, coordinate and execute this street improvement

         18  project and assume funding for work that may not be

         19  covered by the pledged funding sources.

         20                 In this fashion, East 161st Street

         21  can be elevated to a type of street that is

         22  meaningful for Bronx Center and a dignified

         23  contributor to both Yankee Village in the west and

         24  Melrose Commons in the east.

         25                 This shall not relieve the applicant
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          2  from helping retailers who will have to make way for

          3  this building find new and affordable spaces in the

          4  same immediate market area from where they can

          5  continue their services to the neighborhood.  Their

          6  survival is important to the preservation of the

          7  fabric and function of the community.  New locations

          8  for retail must be developed in close proximity

          9  either on East 161st Street or on Morris Avenue.

         10  Furthermore, the applicant must see to it that the

         11  window spaces in the court complex which originally

         12  were programmed for the retail establishments

         13  provide visual and educational interest for the

         14  general public 24- hours a day by housing changing

         15  art exhibitions or visual displays of a similar

         16  kind.

         17                 There are other matters such as day

         18  care and a new building for the high- school of Law,

         19  Government and Justice for which solutions seem to

         20  be in the making.  In this testimony I wanted to

         21  address the two primary problems as they are, if

         22  unaddressed, of utmost consequence for the

         23  appearance of the public realm and the quality of

         24  life for the 161st Street and Concourse

         25  neighborhoods.
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          2                 The same care we take for mega-

          3  buildings in Manhattan must be exercised here in the

          4  Bronx as well.  The image and quality of life of

          5  this City is determined by all boroughs and all

          6  neighborhoods.  New Buildings must be conceived as

          7  positive contributors to the life and function of

          8  their host communities. I ask you to help us build

          9  on the momentum of our Bronx revival and establish

         10  conditions which make this building one that we can

         11  truly welcome not just simply need."

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

         14  Zimmermann, were those concerns that you raised, or

         15  on the behalf of the Borough President raised at the

         16  Borough Board, because I believe this is voted on by

         17  the Borough Board?

         18                 MR. ZIMMERMANN:  It was, it is not a

         19  Borough Board manner, actually it was a Community

         20  Board matter and Borough President's public hearing.

         21    And what came out of our public hearing and the

         22  response to our, the Borough President's request,

         23  the set aside for the police cars was achieve, as

         24  well as in that process the Commissioner was made to

         25  locate the day care center north of 161st Street.
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          2                 But I want to point out to you that

          3  you have addressed in your own hearing only the

          4  siting of the day care center, not the funding, and

          5  I want to urge you to have the funding in place as

          6  well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, as you

          8  know, Mr. Zimmermann, the purview of this Committee

          9  is siting, and while we are siting things that

         10  require policy and budget, that is not really what

         11  we do.  We may use those to affect our votes, but

         12  there is not a lot we have the power to do, other

         13  than getting verbal commitments from people on this,

         14  and we will try to do that.

         15                 You mentioned OCA, and one of the

         16  reasons, as I said on the outset, this is such a

         17  complicated project is that you have DCAS and the

         18  Dormitory Authority and the Mayor's Office of

         19  Criminal Justice Coordinator involved, but

         20  ultimately OCA runs the courthouse, their the

         21  tenant.  Is there anyone from OCA here, just want to

         22  stick up your paw?  No.  Yes, okay, well, would you

         23  like to come forward and address the shield issue,

         24  because I think that is a valid one, since I have a

         25  similar problem in my district, and I can sympathize
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          2  with the role present, do you want to address that

          3  now, or are you prepared to?  You want to wait until

          4  Monday?  Okay, we're approaching the witness table,

          5  state your name for the record, please?  I want to

          6  try to get as much business here as we can, and as

          7  many commitments as we can get here, we want to get.

          8                 MS. LUMAS:  My name is Sherry Lumas,

          9  and I'm the Coordinator for Capital Planning in New

         10  York City.

         11                 Councilman, I believe that this

         12  question is actually best addressed by Judge

         13  Gonzalez who is the Administrative Judge for the

         14  Bronx.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  He is going to

         16  be testifying on a future panel so, thanks for that

         17  answer, or not answer.

         18                 Council Member Foster, had questions

         19  for Mr. Zimmermann.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  You and the

         21  Borough President and the Community Planning Board,

         22  because no one can doubt that you have done a great

         23  job and that you are doing a great job.  First of

         24  all, I agree that the policemen are going to still

         25  double park, triple park on the street, as they do
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          2  now.  They're not going to use the parking spaces.

          3                 Secondly, all these additional

          4  parking spaces reminds me of that commercial of "The

          5  Roach Motel,"  they will check in if they can get in

          6  their, but they will never check out, because of the

          7  traffic, and you know when that Municipal Court is

          8  reopened, it is going to be a nightmares, as it is

          9  now.  What we're talking about is an area that is

         10  going remind you what they said about the Long

         11  Island Expressway at five o'clock.  They may as well

         12  determine that there will be no traffic moving in

         13  and out of that area, I live in that area, I have

         14  been there for 36 years, I go to my church from that

         15  area, and when I go there for services, I don't even

         16  use 161st Street, now I go around it because I know

         17  if I use 161st Street I will be late or not get

         18  there at all.

         19                 That is one of my great concerns,

         20  just the congestion, the lack of concern for people

         21  who live in the area being able to move in and out.

         22  It's all right to tell me you're going to put a

         23  space there for civil servants for others coming in

         24  the district, in the community, but those of us who

         25  live there should be considered as well, I think you
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          2  mention that.

          3                 The other thing, Councilman Carrion

          4  mentioned, they're talking about these jobs, we know

          5  that the blacks and Latino people are not going to

          6  be employed in construction in Bronx County anymore

          7  than they will be employ in construction down here.

          8  There is a written or unwritten law in this City

          9  that unless you're of bureaucratic extraction you

         10  don't get construction jobs, the facts prove that.

         11  Therefore, when you say you're going to bring the

         12  jobs, that is why Mr. Carrion, mentioned, did you

         13  say are they going to be within the community, oh,

         14  he is gone, within the community or outside of the

         15  community, they're coming from outside of the

         16  community.  It's just, and you know, you have been

         17  the Mr. Zimmermann, you have see that happens every

         18  day, and there is always an excused why blacks,

         19  Latinos and so called minorities cannot not be

         20  employed in the construction business in New York

         21  City, and yet, no one is opposed to immigrants from

         22  Europe.  But what I find that immigrants are good

         23  enough to vote, or a plane from Europe and they can

         24  get jobs in my community and the people that live

         25  there and pay my salary and your salary and keep
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          2  this City alive cannot get a job, something is

          3  wrong.

          4                 There is a great deal wrong with this

          5  project from beginning to end.  I'm not saying that

          6  there is not a great deal right about it.  With all

          7  of the space in Bronx County, I cannot understand

          8  why they could not have chosen a space away from the

          9  present schools, and they could not have preserved

         10  this day care center.

         11                 Having said that, I don't know, and I

         12  know Scott is anxious and waiting to find out how

         13  I'm going to vote, and I'm going to vote on it, at

         14  the Council meeting, I don't know yet how I'm going

         15  to vote.  Especially since my Chairman is sneaking

         16  candy and won't even give me a piece.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  It's not mine.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  It's not his,

         19  well, don't eat it then.  See that is just what I'm

         20  talking about.  But there is a great deal to be said

         21  for what they're saying, but all of this could be

         22  said in a location other than this one.

         23                 And you have done more than anyone I

         24  know, the type of groundwork and research and

         25  exploratory work better and more comprehensive than
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          2  anyone.  I commend you for it, I commend the Borough

          3  President for his position, the Community Planning

          4  Board, I commend the court people that are trying to

          5  do something about it.  No one is opposed to giving,

          6  and my Administrative Judge, is one of my dearest

          7  friends, he is aware that I want him to have more

          8  space for the judges.

          9                 The other thing that bothers me is

         10  that when I read that this country imprisoned more

         11  people than any other two countries in the world

         12  combined, that bothers me.  Because it appears that

         13  all the building we're doing is to imprison people,

         14  and that is bad.

         15                 So I said that because I have deep,

         16  deep reservations about the whole project, but I do

         17  want to thank you and others who are working on it,

         18  and even those who gives us his grafts and leaves

         19  these things here because you can put anything on

         20  the graft and make it look good, and these look good

         21  and I believe they're sound, but I don't believe

         22  that the people who drew these things up live in

         23  that community, I don't believe they have considered

         24  the people who live there when they say how many

         25  jobs will be given, how many parking spaces will be
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          2  going in, what about those of us who live there?

          3                 I will say this, remember we just a

          4  built a new housing court, no space for people to

          5  park, no places for mothers to go out and get a

          6  sandwich, you know, Administrative Judge, what I'm

          7  talking about.  You have got to consider the people,

          8  otherwise it's like invading a foreign country with

          9  foreign troops.

         10                 Thank you, Bernd.

         11                 MR. ZIMMERMANN:  Thank you,

         12  Councilman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Councilman

         14  Foster, thank you for your comments and we will

         15  present you with an extra Jolly Ranger, it's not a

         16  deal sweetener because it is very sour.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  And I want

         18  you to know I'm going to accept this, you can hold

         19  it over my head the rest of my life, irregardless,

         20  God Bless you, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:   Thank you, Rev.

         22  Foster.  Okay, thank you, Mr. Zimmermann, for your

         23  testimony.

         24                 MR. ZIMMERMANN:  Thank you, Council

         25  members.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Ms. Ezell.

          3  State your name and who you represent for the

          4  record, please?

          5                 MS. EZELL:  Good afternoon.  My name

          6  is Dee Ezell, and I'm here for Community Board #4

          7  today.  I live and work in Community District #4 in

          8  the Bronx where I have several activists and

          9  advocate roles.  I'm a member of Community Board #4,

         10  and I serve as Chair of the Municipal Services

         11  Committee.

         12                 This Committee works on issues and

         13  concerns under the auspices of agencies, such as

         14  Environmental Protection, Sanitation,

         15  Transportation, NYPD matters and others.  I'm here

         16  today regarding traffic concerns relating to the

         17  proposed court complex and contiguous areas.  The

         18  Committee has carried this issue on several agendas,

         19  it is an ongoing item due to the many problems and a

         20  high level of public concern.

         21                 First, let me say that as we look

         22  forward to a project that has the potential to

         23  create havoc in our lives, the City has already let

         24  us down.  The people of the Bronx should not have to

         25  live with the current traffic conditions at this
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          2  very same location.  The 44th Precinct has an

          3  accident- prone location alert list.  Two of the

          4  four sites listed recently are in this immediate

          5  area.  I submit that poor traffic planning and the

          6  lack of a well coordinated, aggressive enforcement

          7  policy is the culprit.  I can't count the times I

          8  would attend meetings and events on 161st Street

          9  between Morris and Sheridan Avenues, arriving by

         10  livery, and forced to leave the vehicle in the

         11  middle of the street due to double parking.

         12  Nevertheless, let us not pass this way again.

         13                 I believe a good plan with real, true

         14  community input will result in a successful project,

         15  and as an example of poor planning and coordination

         16  by City agencies in our district, I would like to

         17  site the following:  The Department of

         18  Transportation came to my Committee on November 8th,

         19  it was their second presentation, the first was

         20  April 1998, on a pilot project for a nearby Grand

         21  Concourse between 165th and 170th Street, which was

         22  scheduled to begin the very next day.  We applaud

         23  the goal of the project.  It is in response to

         24  community cries for safety and a study conducted in

         25  1992.  It is to look at means of traffic combing to
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          2  reduce the accident and death rates and make the

          3  boulevard more pedestrian friendly.

          4                 The pilot program includes several

          5  changes:  The strategic placement of large planters

          6  to widen the median.  The addition of bike lanes,

          7  and the narrowing of the service road to one lane.

          8  Now so far, I'm sure this report sounds terrific;

          9  doesn't it?  The problem arose when we learned that

         10  the Borough President's Office, who has long- term

         11  plans in progress for the redesign of the Concourse,

         12  was not aware of the pilot project's start date.

         13  Other City agencies, the New York City Transit

         14  Authority, the Department of Sanitation, as well as

         15  the 44th Precinct have also expressed their concern

         16  at no notifications regarding the project.  The New

         17  York City Transit Authority is concerned that their

         18  bus drivers were not given sufficient times to

         19  accustom themselves to the shorten lanes, and the

         20  Department of Sanitation has expressed their

         21  inability to clean around the large planters, once

         22  the snow fall begins.  Now this example exacerbates

         23  our fears and concerns over such a project as the

         24  Bronx Criminal Courthouse Project in our Borough,

         25  and, of course, in our district, the Borough's
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          2  Capital District.

          3                 On the issue of planning the

          4  community deserves and demands the best the City can

          5  offer, and it is key that all participating agencies

          6  work together and coordinate the many, many facets,

          7  traffic, parking, traffic enforcement, all of that,

          8  of a project in a professional, cohesive and cost-

          9  effective way.  Let's get it right this time.

         10                 I thank you.  But with present

         11  company of Commissioner Kilkenney, I need to say

         12  that the problem that I just mentioned does not

         13  represent the relationship we have with him and his

         14  office.  They're very responsive and he has worked

         15  with us to solve many difficult and critical

         16  problems in our district, and I thank you, again.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Let me just ask

         18  you a couple of quick questions, and I hope have

         19  quick answers.  Your Board voted this application,

         20  or the series of applications in the negative; is

         21  that correct?

         22                 MS. EZELL:  That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  What was the

         24  vote, what was the tally of the vote?

         25                 MS. EZELL:  Oh, dear, I didn't bring
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          2  that with me, but I assure you the majority voted

          3  against the project.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Now is it your

          5  sense that the Board understands the need for the

          6  facilities, but just disagrees with its placement?

          7                 MS. EZELL:  Well, I didn't get the

          8  approval of the Board to speak - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I understand

         10  that, I just said is it your sense as an individual

         11  member of the Board?

         12                 MS. EZELL:  It's my sense that of

         13  course we that level of understanding.  I think in

         14  terms of strategy, we needed somebody to listen, we

         15  needed somebody to listen to the problems you're

         16  hearing in terms of expressions from the community

         17  today, and in terms of the very good questions that

         18  you have heard from your side today.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And lastly, is

         20  it your sense that this should be somewhere else in

         21  the Bronx other than your Board area, or do you

         22  understand, or do you think that the sense of the

         23  Board is to sort of keep the courthouses in one sort

         24  of core area?

         25                 MS. EZELL:  Again, you know, this is
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          2  my sense of it, as you're asking, that the Board,

          3  members of the community recognize and understand

          4  the overall needs of the community.  We need the

          5  City to respond to those in a responsible way.  And

          6  we didn't think as we initially received the

          7  proposals that it was very responsible or

          8  considerate of us and our community.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

         10    Thank you very much.  I'm now going to call up

         11  what I think has asked to be a panel, Judge

         12  Gonzalez, Judge Collins, and Sally Manzanet.  As you

         13  approach, what I'm going to do, is, it has been

         14  asked that it be read into the record, and it is a

         15  fairly short statement, so please sit down and get

         16  ready to testify.  I'm just going to read into the

         17  record a statement from Council Member, one of our

         18  colleagues, Pedro Espada from the 17th District.

         19                  "Dear Colleagues, I regret that I am

         20  unable to address you personally this morning, I

         21  will keep my remarks brief, as I know you have

         22  important issues before you.  Although the proposed

         23  Bronx Criminal Courthouse is not in the Council

         24  District I represent, many of my constituents will

         25  be greatly affected by the project.  The surrounding
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          2  communities were promised that many amenities for

          3  their benefit would be included in the project, the

          4  present design does not live up to those promises,

          5  and this is why I must voice my disapproval of the

          6  courthouse as it is presently proposed, and ask the

          7  Subcommittee not to recommend the project.

          8                 Many mistakes are made in design of

          9  the current Family Criminal Courthouse, and we must

         10  be willing to go whatever length necessary to avoid

         11  repeating the errors of the past.  The building of a

         12  new courthouse will require that we impose hardships

         13  on those living and working near the site, including

         14  air and noise pollution, as well as increased

         15  automobile and bus traffic.  Before we ask anyone to

         16  bear these burdens, we must take whatever action

         17  necessary to mitigate the harms and ensure the long-

         18  term benefits and that they outweigh the heavy

         19  costs.

         20                 Thank you for your attention to this

         21  matter, I look forward to speaking to you in person

         22  and to other members of the Subcommittee regarding

         23  this issue in the near future."

         24                 Pedro Espada, 17th District.

         25                 Okay, will the panel please identify
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          2  themselves for the record?

          3                 JUDGE- ELECT MANZANET:  Sallie

          4  Manzanet, member and representative of the Puerto

          5  Rican Bar Association and Civil Court Judge- elect.

          6                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  Luis Gonzalez,

          7  Administrative Judge, Supreme Court, Bronx County.

          8                 JUDGE COLLINS:  John Collins,

          9  Supervising Judge of the Criminal Branch of the

         10  Supreme Court.

         11                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  I guess since I'm

         12  the Administrative Judge maybe I should address the

         13  panel.  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, good

         14  afternoon, members of the Subcommittee here.

         15                 I get the sense that you were asking

         16  questions of the prior speaker to get the sense.  I

         17  get the sense that there is really no objection as

         18  to the need of this courthouse, I think everyone

         19  agrees that there is a need.

         20                 Maybe I can share with you some

         21  figures that will give you a better insight as to

         22  how we, in fact, need this facility.  Back in 1969,

         23  we had eight parts in that courthouse on the corner

         24  of 161st Street and the Grand Concourse.  In 1999,

         25  we have 54 parts, at that time we had 17 court

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            152

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  officers, today we have 221 court officers.  Back in

          3  1969, we had eight court reporters, now we have 70

          4  court reporters, so that you can, just by those

          5  figures alone, you can see, you can get a sense of

          6  how the problem has mushroomed with respect the

          7  services that we provide to the public.

          8                 You should also keep in mind, as a

          9  result of our inadequate facilities and on the

         10  Criminal Branch, I believe that we have 30 percent

         11  of the entire City indictments, 30 percent just in

         12  Bronx County, and you should keep in mind that we

         13  have about 42 percent of those indictments are

         14  beyond standards and goals.  So just by sharing with

         15  you those few numbers I think you can get a feel for

         16  the need of this facility.

         17                 And the jurors, the jurors serve and

         18  we should also serve the jurors, and their are no

         19  waiting rooms in trial plus for jurors.  Many times

         20  the jurors are standing around in the hallways, just

         21  standing around because there is no place to place

         22  them, and you will see defendants sometimes having

         23  to be, walk through the corridors with handcuffs in

         24  front of jurors who may, in fact, be deciding over,

         25  not deciding, but hearing the case.  So this are
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          2  just some of the examples of how, of why it is that

          3  we need this facility.

          4                 We're not unmindful of the problems

          5  that a project of this magnitude creates, we're not

          6  unmindful of the difficult task that you have in

          7  dealing with a contending positions of different

          8  parties that are being affected.  Back in the

          9  summer, we, when I say we, Judge Collins, Judge-

         10  elect Sallie Manzanet, and she, in fact, is my court

         11  attorney, she has just been elected to the Civil

         12  Court in November, the County Clerk, members of the

         13  Borough President, we met with community leaders to

         14  see if some how our seemingly different interest

         15  could come together.  I know that when I made my

         16  statement before it was with, the next room over

         17  there, The Planning Commission, correct, I indicated

         18  that the community has legitimate concerns and that

         19  they ought to be addressed, and I think if they're

         20  addressed they can, in fact, be worked out.

         21                 So I think with the good faith of

         22  everyone involved, we can get this project done, and

         23  at the same time, address and resolve the problems

         24  that the community has with this project.  I do not

         25  necessarily think that they are mutually exclusive,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            154

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  our interests and the interest of the community.

          3  But just by making this brief statement to you, I

          4  hope I give you a sense of why it is that we need

          5  this facility, and also that we're not unmindful of

          6  the concerns that are being raised by the community.

          7                 Thank you for allowing me to address

          8  myself to you.

          9                 JUDGE COLLINS:  Mr. Chairman and

         10  members of the Council, I, very briefly, I wish to

         11  return to address an item that was of concern to the

         12  Planning Commission and of concern here earlier

         13  today and which is understandable concerns of the

         14  community, and namely, that is the problem of

         15  traffic congestion, principally police- related on

         16  East 161st Street.

         17                 Having served in the Bronx Court for

         18  close to 21 years and having lived all my life in

         19  Bronx County, I am well aware of the problem, which

         20  seems to have dramatically increased over the years.

         21    Police vehicles marked and unmarked are coming

         22  from and going to the Bronx Criminal Court, that is

         23  the lower court at 215 East 161st Street between

         24  Sherman and Sheridan.  This traffic is primarily

         25  related to the arraignment facility, which is
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          2  located there, and to which defendants, victims, and

          3  officers come after a defendant's arrest.

          4                 But I think it should be clear where

          5  the primary congestion exists, there is little

          6  police traffic congestion around the current Supreme

          7  Court building at 851 Grand Concourse. Whatever

          8  congestion exists around that building is caused by

          9  the Department of Correction buses bringing and

         10  taking the 220 or so prisoners each day to and from

         11  Riker's Island.  All other parking outside that

         12  building is carefully monitored by Supreme Court

         13  officers and all cars must possess those

         14  identification placards.

         15                 It is unlikely that we would be

         16  contributing by the removal of our parts to the new

         17  building much more in the way of traffic.

         18  Nevertheless, even now one of our planning projects

         19  may be of some help, we have a draft plan, which we

         20  are attempting to get City funding for.  This would

         21  eliminate courtroom appearances of up to 50 percent

         22  of our jail cases.  Routine calendar appearances

         23  could occur by means of video using the City's optic

         24  ring, all parties, except for the defendant would be

         25  at the courthouse, and the latter would remain at

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            156

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  the prison, but could observe all of the parties on

          3  a video screen, and this pilot project would apply

          4  to narcotic cases, about one- half of our total

          5  caseload.

          6                 We have the support of the District

          7  Attorney and the Defense Bar in Bronx County, a

          8  pilot project already exists in Kings County.  There

          9  was a column in yesterday's New York Law Journal,

         10  which gives us good reason to believe that the

         11  project will soon be initiated in Bronx County.

         12                 I understand that this will not solve

         13  the totality of the East 161st Street traffic

         14  problem, but I bring it to your attention to

         15  demonstrate that we understand the problem and we

         16  are open to other considerations and to working on

         17  other solutions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Judge Collins,

         19  would that lead me to believe that you don't agree

         20  the assertion of Borough President that there is a

         21  shield problem?

         22                 JUDGE COLLINS:  Not outside 851 Grand

         23  Concourse.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  In the area I

         25  think is what they were referring to.
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          2                 JUDGE COLLINS:  Certainly, I just

          3  said, over, outside the Criminal Court facility

          4  there is a definite problem, vehicles are double

          5  parked and triple parked.  I understand that there

          6  is, I have been told at one of my meetings that

          7  there is an arrangement as a result of a contract

          8  between the PBA and the City that the City is

          9  required to have parking for every policeman's

         10  private vehicle when he comes to work, and I'm told

         11  that this is part of the problem.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, many of

         13  our precincts don't have that now, I have got to

         14  tell you, I can name two in my district.  But I

         15  don't get the feeling that the Borough President's

         16  concern was really addressed, and I would like OCA

         17  or somebody to be prepared to answer it.

         18                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  Mr. Chairman, if I

         19  may?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes, Judge

         21  Gonzalez.

         22                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  As part of my duties

         23  I administer the issuing of placards, so this is

         24  when you initially ask the question my name was

         25  mentioned.  We have about 160 spaces around the
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          2  Bronx County Courthouse right now, and that is the

          3  Supreme Court building.  Again, maybe the Borough

          4  President was addressing the problem down on 161st

          5  Street, because that is really where the traffic

          6  situation, and by the way, that is exactly where the

          7  building is going to be erected.  So that is the

          8  focus of the problem, not the Supreme Court.

          9                 We have about 160 spaces, and I am

         10  the liaison between the court and the Police

         11  Department, and the Police Department issues the

         12  placards pursuant to applications by people that I

         13  either approve or disapprove for placards.  So we

         14  can have control over that, that is an internal

         15  thing.  Thank God there is one thing that we in the

         16  courthouse can control, and that is one of the

         17  things.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Then Judge, I

         19  think the Borough President has raised some

         20  objections and if we're going to solve some of

         21  those, you know, we go, at least a step in the

         22  direction of some concert of ideas here.

         23                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  We can work closely

         24  with the Borough President and address that issue

         25  with him, as far as the placards.  I mean, that is
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          2  really, that is a very easily solved problem from my

          3  advantage point.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  Judge-

          5  elect, why don't you?

          6                 JUDGE- ELECT MANZANET:  Thank you

          7  very much.  Good afternoon.  As I sat here and

          8  listened to the comments of many of the speakers

          9  that preceded me, one of the things that struck me

         10  is that I don't really have the sense that the

         11  residential community regards the courthouse

         12  community as a part of that community.  I spend as

         13  much time, if not more time on 161st Street, and in

         14  that area than I do in my own neighborhood.  So to

         15  not embrace me as a member of that community, I

         16  think is a problem.  I use that community, we

         17  frequent the restaurants and the businesses in that

         18  community, so we are very much a part of that

         19  community, and we, likewise, will have to endure the

         20  terrible traffic nightmare that is going to be

         21  impacted by this project.  We are not ignorant of

         22  that fact.

         23                 However, to say yes, this courthouse

         24  is needed in this blanket way without really

         25  understanding what that means is a disservice to
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          2  this Council.  This courthouse and the problem in

          3  our Judicial System is that we cannot administer

          4  justice in a timely fashion, that is the bottom

          5  line.  To suggest that this courthouse could be

          6  built somewhere else, away from all of the other

          7  court complexes, makes no sense to me, as someone

          8  from the system, because that was the case many

          9  years ago when we had one of our courthouses on 3rd

         10  Avenue, that did not work, because trying to get the

         11  attorneys back and forth who had to cover cases in

         12  both buildings was impossible, and what that creates

         13  is yet, it will feed into the very problem that we

         14  are trying to solve by expanding the space, which is

         15  ceasing the extensive delays in the administration

         16  of justice.

         17                 I was a Legal Aid Attorney in the

         18  Bronx for many years.  I represented many clients

         19  who sat and languished in jail a year and one- half

         20  to two years waiting for a trial.  Those people are

         21  also members of the community, and not all of them

         22  were guilty. I think the major reaction to the

         23  community "should not suffer because after all this

         24  building is going to be used for criminals," is to

         25  miss the point.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            161

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 The bottom line is that the Family

          3  Court building now houses the Criminal Court, where

          4  I work, and those courtrooms are busting at the

          5  seams.  In Supreme Court Criminal and Civil, there

          6  are Civil Court Judges who have no courtrooms.  Next

          7  year when I begin, I may not have a courtroom to

          8  work out of, which means my ability to administer

          9  justice expeditiously so that the community gets

         10  justice is impeded by the lack of space.

         11                 So I urge this Council to please

         12  remember that your people who work, these civil

         13  servants, it's almost like, I kept on thinking I

         14  was, you know, it was being couched in the same way

         15  liberals has been used in this country as a bad,

         16  dirty word.  Civil service is not a dirty word, and

         17  we are members of this community, the community

         18  needs this building, not to mention, because a lot

         19  of talk was disgust concerning the high school.

         20                 Let me just say, last year I

         21  participated in a six month program with junior high

         22  school students from PS 166, and I traveled from the

         23  Supreme Court building over there on a weekly basis

         24  to participate in a My Child Program with those

         25  students. Those students benefitted from that
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          2  program, as will the students from the High School

          3  of Law, Government and Justice.  I have also spoken

          4  to those students down there and extended myself, as

          5  well as other members of the courthouse.

          6                 The community needs to understand

          7  that the benefits here are not just to the people

          8  who use the building and are workers in the

          9  building, and not just to the criminal defendants.

         10  There are innocent people, family members, victims,

         11  jurors alike who have to use these buildings day in

         12  and day out under the most horrendous conditions,

         13  and to ignore that fact would be an outrage.

         14                 So I urge this Council to approve

         15  this building and allow both sections of this

         16  community to deal with the issues that are inherent

         17  with the project.  I lived through the erection of

         18  the Concourse Plaza, we went through the very same

         19  issues that we're discussing here today during that

         20  project and we lived through it. It wasn't easy, I'm

         21  not saying that it is, but to suggest that there is

         22  another location that would be suitable and to

         23  achieve the goal of denying justice because of the

         24  delay that justice must operate under is to negate

         25  the reality.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  As I

          4  said earlier, to an earlier witness as a member of

          5  the Council's Governmental Operations Committee

          6  which has oversight over the Department of City-

          7  wide Administrative Services, we have been to the

          8  Bronx Courthouses and we see the conditions

          9  operating under.  But as a Land Use panel we also

         10  have to look at the context of these projects and

         11  where they're being put.  And while you are right in

         12  terms of how you and others use the courthouse feel

         13  about the community, I don't think that you or

         14  others can say what the motivation of the community

         15  is, and there may be people in the community, and we

         16  have heard from school kids here today and the Head

         17  of the Parent's Association, who obviously do feel

         18  that the courthouse and the courts are sort of not

         19  really part of the whoop, and the woof, and fabric

         20  of the neighborhood.  Now they are by virtue of

         21  location, by virtue of what they do, but they may

         22  feel it is a little forbidding, and maybe there is

         23  some way that you can reach out to that school and

         24  to others in the community and the Community Board

         25  to make everyone feel like they're working off the
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          2  same page in the hymnal, because I think that would

          3  benefit everyone.

          4                 Questions, comments?  Council Member

          5  Carrion.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

          7  Judges and Judge- elect.  Yes, I get the gist of

          8  your point, and obviously, what I said when I

          9  started the first round of questions was that I

         10  think it is inarguable that we need this space, we

         11  need to do it. And then so the challenge becomes how

         12  we do it, and really that is what we're after.

         13                 I had one question with regard to the

         14  role of the court officers.  It's Department of

         15  Correction Shields, is that what it is?  What are

         16  the shields that we're talking about?

         17                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  We're talking about

         18  placards.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  The parking

         20  placards, that you have authority over?

         21                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  That's right,

         22  parking permits.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, and

         24  the mitigation was to reduce the number that we

         25  actually give out; was that the idea?
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          2                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  I'm going to say - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Take them

          4  away?

          5                 JUDGE GONZALEZ: - -  but I don't want

          6  anyone to repeat it, but we have about 140, maybe

          7  160 spaces, but we have issued more placards than

          8  there are spaces.  One of the reasons is that some

          9  people sometimes don't come to work, you know

         10  percentage. But I know that when I came in, in

         11  January, when I sent out the placards to the people

         12  that previously had placards, so I continue that

         13  practice.  However, I sent a letter with each

         14  placard stating that the process will be totally

         15  different next year, meaning January of 2000.  So

         16  the court employees, the court personnel is on

         17  notice that it is a new ball game.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  It's a new

         19  day, they have been forewarned.

         20                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  That is correct.

         21  But I should also share with you, that is not just

         22  for court employees, a percentage of those placards

         23  go to the District Attorney's Office, the reason is

         24  that one of the conditions for the District Attorney

         25  vacating the courthouse and moving to the new
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          2  building over at 161st Street, which is right in

          3  front of the proposed building.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right.

          5                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  One of the

          6  conditions was that X number of spaces be reserved

          7  for Assistant District Attorneys.  Now the Borough

          8  President also has X number of spaces that I issued,

          9  the County Clerk also has, Surrogate's Court and

         10  Judge Manzanet keeping, and by the way, I understand

         11  why Judge Collins and I have decided to precede her

         12  instead of following her, because it is a hard act

         13  to follow.

         14                 I should also share with you this

         15  thought, at the risk of oversimplifying the problem.

         16    I think that the problem with double parking and

         17  triple parking on 161st Street is really, my humble

         18  opinion, a question of will.  What do I mean by

         19  that?  If you go down in front of 100 Center Street,

         20  you do not see double and triple parked cars.  Now

         21  why is it that that facility can have a smooth,

         22  running, and it is no better than 161st Street, as

         23  far as I'm concerned, why is it that they don't have

         24  that problem, and yet, we have?  I believe that it

         25  is a question of will.  There is not the will by the
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          2  City to let the Police Department, you see, we don't

          3  have control of the Police Department, we cannot

          4  tell the Police Department what to do or what not to

          5  do, we cannot enforce that.  But if there is the

          6  will to enforce traffic or parking regulations, I

          7  suspect that the problem will be greatly alleviated,

          8  there is a lack of will of our officials to enforced

          9  the parking regulations around that courthouse.  The

         10  same way that you have a will to do it around 100

         11  Center Street, you should have the will to do it

         12  around 161st Street.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  There is

         14  something called a tow truck, I think that is pretty

         15  scary for a lot.

         16                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  Or tow trucks.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Yes, tow

         18  trucks.  Let me just ask, in the extent of authority

         19  of the court officers in terms of, and

         20  responsibility, in terms of the perimeter of the

         21  building and parking, I have heard that they have

         22  the authority to go around the building, identify

         23  illegally parked vehicles and give them summonses;

         24  is that true?

         25                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  Correct, the court
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          2  officers can do that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  But do they

          4  make it a practice to do that, is that part of their

          5  thing?

          6                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  Some of them, I

          7  mean, I shouldn't say some of them, we have four

          8  court officers assigned, two at 158th Street and two

          9  on Walton.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.

         11                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  And they are there

         12  and they park the cars and they make sure that

         13  everyone that parks there is legally parked.  If

         14  some how someone gets in there without the court

         15  officer serving them, they do have the power to

         16  issue a summons for illegally parked cars.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         20                 JUDGE GONZALEZ:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you for

         22  your testimony, for your patience.

         23                 Bill Johnson, Mid Bronx Senior

         24  Citizen Council. State your name, please, and who

         25  you represent?
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          2                 MR. JOHNSON:  My name is Bill

          3  Johnson, and I'm Assistant to the Executive Director

          4  of Mid Bronx Senior Citizen Council.  Should I

          5  proceed?  Thank you.

          6                 I had a written statement, and I will

          7  present it to the Subcommittee to make it part of

          8  your record, but I thought it would be most

          9  informative if I try to pull out a little context to

         10  the presentations that have been made.  First of

         11  all, let me start off by saying that this community

         12  has been working on this project in conjunction with

         13  the City for the last six years.  I, personally,

         14  have been involved in every meeting that has been

         15  scheduled, some of them scheduled, and there have

         16  been people who did not attend or do not show up.

         17                 I think that we are here today not to

         18  really debate whether or not this is a worthwhile

         19  project, I don't think that is the issue.  This

         20  community has met with every party that has any

         21  self- interest in this project, including the

         22  Judges.  We sat down with the City Council people,

         23  we have sat down with the Judges prior to the

         24  Planning Board meeting, and we felt that we had

         25  reached a consensus regarding the self- interest of
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          2  the community, as well as the self- interest of the

          3  other parties.

          4                 There are only really three items

          5  that I think that needs to be addressed, and I think

          6  they have been discussed already.  They have to do

          7  with, one, employment of community residents, the

          8  other has to do with traffic, and the other has to

          9  do with the dislocation of the day care center, as

         10  well as the dislocation of the retail businesses

         11  that are a vital part of this community.

         12                 I would like to ask the question,

         13  because we started off this project and we, our

         14  agency, paid for a study that was called, "A Good

         15  Neighbor Plan."  And we started off on this road as

         16  a mutual body trying to develop a plan that would

         17  benefit all the parties involved.  And we started

         18  off saying that if this Court was going to be built,

         19  it should be a good neighbor to the people who live

         20  here.  And I think the people who live in this

         21  neighborhood deserve the best that the City can

         22  offer, and I don't think that the plan that is

         23  currently being put before you is the best that this

         24  City could provide to the people who live in this

         25  neighborhood.
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          2                 I would also ask the question that

          3  sometimes I get the impression that the people who

          4  are making presentations here feel as if they're

          5  building a two- story house, or a two- family house

          6  next to the neighbors who live here.  You are

          7  building a facility that has been described as the

          8  quarter of the size of the World Trade Center.  How

          9  many of you would like this building next door to

         10  where you live, wherever that is?  And then come

         11  before us and say that we have done everything we

         12  can to accommodate you.  I think that is a vital

         13  question, and I think it is more of a question of

         14  conscience than it is of content, and I think we

         15  need to look at this.

         16                 This building will be a neighbor to

         17  the people who will come before you and you have

         18  came before you already, and I think that they

         19  deserve a good neighbor.  And the design that is

         20  currently being presented is not a good neighbor

         21  plan.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Next

         24  witness will be Brenda Mack from Morrisania Air

         25  Rights Tenants Association, Ms. Mack, still here?
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          2  Had to leave, okay.  Next witness Curtis Seifried,

          3  Nos Quedamos.

          4                 As the witness is approaching let me

          5  just reset, this is the Subcommittee on Landmarks,

          6  Public Siting and Maritime Uses of the City Council

          7  Land Use Committee, and I'm Council Member Sabini

          8  from Queens.  I Chair the Subcommittee.  Council

          9  Members Wooten, Perkins, and Carrion are also

         10  present, and we are hearing a number of items,

         11  including right now Land Use 539 through 544, items

         12  relating to the construction of a courthouse in the

         13  Bronx and related to facilities, including parking

         14  and stuff like that there.

         15                 Go ahead.

         16                 MR. SEIFRIED:  My name is Curtis

         17  Seifried.  I represent Nos Quedamos Community

         18  Development Corporation in the South Bronx in

         19  Melrose Commons.

         20                 No one really disputes that this

         21  courthouse is needed and that there has been a long

         22  discussion and a long history of planning for this.

         23  What we feel some of the missing points are, and

         24  some of these are items that were previously agreed

         25  to in the planning process is that there needs to be
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          2  a better relocation plan for the businesses that

          3  will be displaced from the location where the

          4  project is going to be built.  Besides making retail

          5  spaces available within a quarter of a mile possibly

          6  funding might be made available on a grant basis to

          7  businesses that exist so that they can choose to

          8  relocate where they feel best that they need to

          9  within that quarter of a mile area, besides making

         10  retail spaces available within a quarter of a mile,

         11  possibly funding might be made available on a grant

         12  basis to businesses that exist so that they can

         13  choose to relocate where they feel best that they

         14  need to within that quarter of a mile area, besides

         15  making additional retail spaces available on City

         16  properties.

         17                 We also feel there is going to be a

         18  great loss of jobs to community residents who

         19  already work in a lot of the businesses on 161st

         20  Street in that area, and that this issue needs to be

         21  addressed.  Also, the high school is a very good

         22  plan, we had not known that that was going to be

         23  incorporated, we thought that that was being removed

         24  totally when we wrote up our written statement, but

         25  we think that is a very good part of the plan, and a
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          2  very intrical part of it is to have this become an

          3  educational facility for high school students who

          4  are interested in careers in law and justice.

          5                 The two big issues are the ones of

          6  jobs for residents of the Bronx, and particularly

          7  for residents of the surrounding community.  The

          8  Dormitory Authority has talked about a goal of 35

          9  percent.  We really feel what they need is maybe a

         10  goal of 50 percent and a mandated guarantee of 35

         11  percent written into the contracts, that the

         12  contractors must hire a minimum amount of minority

         13  workers and women, and from the Bronx who have

         14  residence in the Bronx and can prove that they are

         15  residents of the Bronx. And this would open a way

         16  for minorities to break into the construction

         17  industry, particularly since it has been pointed out

         18  that the union construction industry really only

         19  employs people of European descent, and this needs

         20  to be changed, and I think guarantees need to be

         21  written into the contracts.  These need to be put

         22  into the RFPs, put into the scopes of the contracts

         23  when they're let so that the contractors who bid on

         24  these projects know ahead of time that these are

         25  going to be the conditions and that they will be
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          2  required to meet those conditions.

          3                 Also the day care facility, in

          4  addition to replacing the displaced day care

          5  facility, we also feel that there needs to be day

          6  care facilities made available for youth and

          7  children of the clients who are going to be coming

          8  to the courts, the defendants, their family members,

          9  witnesses that have to come all have children, and

         10  in a lot of cases young children that they have to

         11  find day care for, and it had been discussed

         12  previously that day care should be made available

         13  for those people besides the displacement of the day

         14  care center that exists, and also potentially for

         15  staff members who work there.  So that they would be

         16  able to have day care facilities within the area

         17  where they are working to make it easier for them to

         18  get to and from their jobs, not having to take their

         19  children to day care centers outside of maybe the

         20  neighborhood they live and/or are working.  So what

         21  we're looking at is really possibly put day care

         22  facilities within the area of two to three times the

         23  volume of what is actually being displaced.

         24                 Also it was mentioned that the

         25  entrance and lobby way to the building was made
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          2  large enough to accommodate 800 people inside, but

          3  it was also mentioned that there is a through put of

          4  about 2,000 people an hour.  On a nice sunny day in

          5  the summer, waiting outside, the other 1,200 people,

          6  that's not so bad.  In the winter, in the rain, in

          7  the cold 1,200 people waiting outside to get into

          8  the lobby that can through put 800 people is not

          9  really acceptable.  Some sort of modification needs

         10  to be made on the exterior of the building to offer

         11  the 1,200 people an hour some sort of protection

         12  from the elements and from the weather while they're

         13  being forced to wait outside to get into that lobby

         14  area that can only hold 800 people.

         15                 There are a number of other issues

         16  that were brought up during the course of this, the

         17  police crossing guards for the schools, I think is

         18  very important, and also, a guarantee of the rat

         19  abatement, this is extremely important.  Whenever a

         20  construction project is started whether it's on

         21  empty properties or on existing properties you have

         22  and outflow of vermin and this needs to be addressed

         23  in a serious manner.

         24                 And with that, I think I will close.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I just have a
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          2  quick question for you, what is your assertion of

          3  the loss of jobs from the businesses displaced?

          4                 MR. SEIFRIED:  We don't really have a

          5  count of how many people.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You don't feel

          7  that they're planned to relocate those businesses is

          8  adequate?

          9                 MR. SEIFRIED:  No, because a lot of

         10  the businesses are not going to have the same volume

         11  and the same type of business relocating within a

         12  quarter of a mile on, let's say, side streets.

         13  They're not going to have the prime retail space

         14  that they have where they are located currently, so

         15  there will be, maybe the businesses may downsize.

         16  Some of them may not relocate at all, they may

         17  relocate to other areas of the Bronx or outside of

         18  the Bronx altogether because they feel that those

         19  alternative locations are not really viable for

         20  them.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         22  Questions?  Thank you very much.  Okay Bilal Asmar

         23  and Eric Cooper from, you're both from the same

         24  chain, I guess, the Super Discount.  State your

         25  names for the record, please?
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          2                 MR. ASMAR:  My name is Bilal Asmar.

          3  I represent Super Discount.  I'm one of the current

          4  partners.

          5                 MR. COOPER:  My name is Eric Cooper.

          6  I'm a representative from Super Discount.

          7                 MR. ASMAR:  We're here to express the

          8  concern of not only the retailers, but the

          9  community.  We currently employ approximately 30

         10  employees within Super Discount.  From asking other

         11  retailers in the neighborhood within that three-

         12  block radius that the courthouse will be taking up,

         13  there is going to be approximately 120 jobs lost by

         14  people who work from the community within these

         15  places, that means that there will be 120 families

         16  affected by this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Please tell us

         18  where your store is?

         19                 MR. ASMAR:  Right, 251, right on

         20  161st Street and close to the corner of Grant.

         21  Right in the front center of the courthouse, pretty

         22  close, to the left a little, where the courthouse

         23  is.

         24                 And I believe that a lot of the

         25  issues that were spoken of did not cover what really
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          2  needs to be covered, like relocating 25,000 square

          3  feet worth of retail space in a quarter of a mile

          4  from that space 161st Street is not enough, because

          5  the retailers who will lose their businesses within

          6  that three- block radius will not be able to

          7  accommodate within a space of 25,000 square feet,

          8  plus alone take up 5,000 square feet.  And if we

          9  were to move a quarter of a mile from the place that

         10  we are, which is prime retail location at the

         11  moment, it will lower sales drastically, and then we

         12  will not be able to employ the same amount of people

         13  that we employ at the moment.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Are you in the

         15  Ice House now?

         16                 MR. ASMAR:  Yes, right under it, the

         17  bottom floor of the Ice House.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Between Grant

         19  and Mart?

         20                 MR. ASMAR:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Have they told

         22  you ways they would relocate you, yet?

         23                 MR. ASMAR:  No.

         24                 MR. COOPER:  No.

         25                 MR. ASMAR:  They haven't even
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          2  contacted us.

          3                 MR. COOPER:  Not only that, Super

          4  Discount is more than just a neighborhood store.  We

          5  have an excess of 30 people working for us, the

          6  majority of young people, you know, let me give this

          7  straight, young people that work for us, you know

          8  what I'm saying, they don't have GED's, you know,

          9  they're neighborhood kids that is trying, you know

         10  what I'm saying, to better themselves. The majority

         11  of young kids that work for us are now into school,

         12  they're going to college because this is what we

         13  recommend, we want this for them.  You know, we have

         14  a lot of kids that was here today were in school.

         15  Some of the kids around this area and what not,

         16  their mother don't have, you know what I'm saying,

         17  the means of sending them or helping them, you know,

         18  they're on welfare, they're not on welfare, they're

         19  doing something other than, you know what I'm

         20  saying, so we also protect the people in the

         21  community.  That is why our store stays open from

         22  8:30 in the morning until 9:00 at night.  The area

         23  is a high crime area, even with the courthouses

         24  around there, we provide protection for the elderly,

         25  you know.
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          2                 I have a petition, but I didn't bring

          3  it, I have so many people that signed and what not.

          4  We also, every holiday we try to give back, you

          5  know, to the community and what not.  I mean we have

          6  Christmas Pageants, Halloween, Easter, we do

          7  numerous things for the kids in the community.  It's

          8  not about a Discount Store, it's not about no

          9  Discount Store, it's about helping people and about

         10  our children in the community, about the kid that

         11  could be out there right now that is not working for

         12  us with a gun in their hand or a knife in their hand

         13  trying to stick up one of us, you know.  We try to

         14  bring back the morals that ain't got from their

         15  family.

         16                 Also, we have a tendency to share,

         17  you know.  I have been to a lot of meetings about

         18  this project, I have been to a lot of meetings, and

         19  I have been hearing the same old thing, and I'm

         20  tired of it, the same old thing.  Everybody probably

         21  gets that except the people, and then I look up here

         22  and says, "A government of the people, by the

         23  people, for people," well, we're the people, we are,

         24  we are the people.

         25                 I'm one of the little people that you
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          2  don't even know about, but I'm standing here talking

          3  to you to let you know that I don't mind, yes, the

          4  Judges need, they do need, but the people need more.

          5    And if we don't start thinking about the people

          6  first and foremost, then the people will stop

          7  thinking about the government.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

          9                 MR. ASMAR:  I think that if we were

         10  to be relocated across the street, it would be a lot

         11  better than the ideas that they are offering us

         12  right now.  They have showed us addresses in, they

         13  just showed us a form where there are places

         14  available, and they're all the way on the other side

         15  of town or even Manhattan, you know, it's nowhere

         16  near the community.  The community needs retail

         17  businesses, they're going to lose a lot of retail

         18  stores. And also, across the street, if it's not a

         19  City- owned building and it's leased, I don't see

         20  why there should be a problem with giving us the

         21  lobby for all the retailers.

         22                 It is a way of giving the community

         23  something back and the retailers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

         25  Questions?  Council Member Carrion.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  I was going

          3  to ask you and you answered it, the last part, which

          4  was outside of staying there, which would be the

          5  ideal and not changing the world, which I really

          6  don't think is going to happen, the courthouse will

          7  be built.  The question is, you know, what is the

          8  best case scenario for you?  And you're suggesting

          9  that we go across the street as the best scenario?

         10                 MR. ASMAR:  Across the street is one

         11  of the best solutions for the community, because it

         12  is the closest place to that courthouse, which will

         13  also serve the courthouse and the community.  And

         14  the people won't feel as bad because they are still

         15  going to have most of their retail stores.  And it

         16  is big enough across the street to accommodate all

         17  of these retail stores.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  And the

         19  other thing, just for the record, you said that

         20  there has been no contact with you up until this

         21  point?

         22                 MR. ASMAR:  None.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  From any

         24  City agency?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:   Excuse me, - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  I just want

          3  to clarify it, he said that earlier.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes, but I mean,

          5  he said they gave out - -

          6                 MR. ASMAR:  Only within the meetings,

          7  we spoke to a relocation person, and the lady showed

          8  us a paper, other than that from the City we haven't

          9  had any contact.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, you have

         11  heard something.

         12                 MR. ASMAR:  They haven't called us

         13  personally to tell us what, when they are going to

         14  go forth or whatsoever.  We only spoke to somebody

         15  that is in charge of relocating retail stores, but

         16  the person showed us a paper with locations outside

         17  of the neighborhood, and that is not what we want.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  All right, thank

         19  you.

         20                 MR. COOPER:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. ASMAR:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Paul Johnson.

         23  State your name for the record, please?

         24                 MR. JOHNSON:  My name is Paul

         25  Johnson.  I'm a community resident, as well as a
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          2  member of the MPI Leadership Group, which I'm the

          3  Chairman of, and I serve on several other committees

          4  in the community.  Our purpose there is to help

          5  develop and preserve the community.

          6                 And I did have something written that

          7  I was going to read, but most of what I was going to

          8  say has already been said in particular things about

          9  the amenities that we were asked about, or the

         10  community that asked for, so I'm not going to go

         11  over those again, we already know what those are.

         12  But I would like to read one sentence here just to

         13  preface something that I want to say.

         14                 And that is, from the time that this

         15  project was first brought to the community we have

         16  been seeking an open line of communication and input

         17  from the community to ensure that once completed it

         18  will be community friendly as well as satisfy its

         19  stated purpose.  The Judge- Elect came up and said

         20  that the community seemed not to understand the

         21  needs and that we don't embrace them.  We embrace

         22  everyone in the community.

         23                 The merchants that you see here, some

         24  of them, the owners, don't necessarily live in the

         25  community, but we embrace them as part of the
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          2  community.  So it's not a thing that community is

          3  not aware of the need of this court complex.  I,

          4  myself, have been to the Criminal Court Building and

          5  I see the conditions there, and I have been in the

          6  Family Court part and I see the conditions there,

          7  and I also understand the security measures.

          8  However, I don't believe that those are reasons to

          9  all, or excuses to totally push aside what this

         10  community is asking for, and I don't think that

         11  we're asking for a lot, and I think it has become

         12  important now that we start, as Eric said, we have

         13  to start looking at the human side of this as well.

         14  Some of the things that have been asked for by the

         15  community, may be a little difficult to work out,

         16  but I think if there is a concerted effort by all

         17  concerned parties, that these things can be

         18  resolved.

         19                 Someone asked me just before I spoke,

         20  a little while ago, can I get mad when I get up

         21  here?  And I said, well, I don't have anything to

         22  get mad about, yet, because, you know, I have

         23  already written out what I was going to say.  But I

         24  must say that that statement by the Judge- Elect

         25  about the community, you know, disturbs me because
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          2  that is not the first time I have heard that. And we

          3  use that courthouse as well, so we see the

          4  importance that courthouse has served in that

          5  community, as well as the merchants that serve in

          6  that community.

          7                 And for that reason we ask you that

          8  when you vote consider all these that have been

          9  said, all these conditions that have been brought

         10  forth to you by the community, and not force us to

         11  take something that we do not totally agree with.

         12  And just one final thing, Councilman Carrion said

         13  earlier something about communities give and give

         14  and give.  You know our community give a lot, we

         15  have all that traffic problem there, they're

         16  contemplating to work on the 161st Street Bridge,

         17  there is massive work going on at 161st Street

         18  Subway Station now.  When I go to work at night I

         19  have to go all the way down to the lowest level just

         20  to get to the Number 4 Train upstairs.  And I think

         21  it is enough is enough.  You know, there is only so

         22  much that you can ask a community to take and not

         23  get anything back at all.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Johnson, you
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          2  go to the lower level because they're changing the

          3  station around, right?

          4                 MR. JOHNSON:  Well they're installing

          5  some elevators.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So it's not that

          7  they're inflicting something on you, they're

          8  improving it, it's just a temporary thing.

          9                 MR. JOHNSON:  Well I can understand

         10  that, I can understand that, but I think, again,

         11  this is just an example of how you put something on

         12  a community.  They closed the stairway that goes to

         13  the Number 4 Train and make you walk all the way

         14  down to the D level to go around and go up, that is

         15  what I'm saying, because they closed that whole

         16  section where they're repairing the Transit Police

         17  section.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  We have a

         19  representative here from the Police Department, do

         20  you want to come forward and address this issue of

         21  parking or shields, or not at this time?  I mean,

         22  the specific question is that there has been

         23  testimony to the fact, and certainly I have police

         24  facilities in my district in the Leffrak City where

         25  this has happened as well, where, and I think it was
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          2  said very well earlier, you don't see the kind of

          3  double and triple parking of shield vehicles that

          4  are, in many cases, illegally parked even with their

          5  permits at Center Street as you do in the outer

          6  boroughs.  I suspect it's because of the proximity

          7  of the Police Brass and some of the mid- level folks

          8  don't want to ticket their brethren, and I can share

          9  the concern my friends in the Bronx that have about

         10  that, since I see it as well.

         11                 MS. RICHROATH:  I can tell you that

         12  the Criminal Justice Coordinator, who is appointed

         13  and reports directly to the Mayor, spoke with the

         14  First Deputy Police Commissioner, Patrick Kelleher,

         15  and expressed the frustration that everyone was

         16  expressing to us.  First Deputy Commissioner

         17  Kelleher spoke to Inspector Richard Romaine, who is

         18  the Commander of the 44th Precinct, and he is

         19  responsible for making sure that the parking

         20  regulations on 161st Street are enforced.

         21                 I have here Lieutenant Harrison from

         22  the 44th Precinct and he can explain to you what the

         23  enforcement is that is going on up there right now.

         24                 LT. HARRISON:  Basically, Councilman,

         25  we have two officers assigned to that street to keep
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          2  traffic moving, keep cars from double parking.  No

          3  one has said it today, but I believe there has been

          4  a vast improvement in parking on 161st Street in the

          5  past couple of months, just from my own

          6  observations, due to these officers keeping cars

          7  moving.  I'm not going to say it's perfect, they

          8  have made it much better.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I haven't gotten

         10  that impression from the community or from the

         11  Borough President's Office, or anecdotal evidence

         12  from local Council members, now maybe you need to do

         13  a little bit more.

         14                 LT. HARRISON:  Again, it's in the

         15  past month or two, I'm talking about.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Very recent,

         17  okay.

         18                 LT. HARRISON:  I, myself, have spent

         19  a whole week out there watching patterns, who is

         20  coming, who is going.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

         22                 SGT. TUFFY:  If I could just add,

         23  Sergeant Thomas Tuffy, Managing Attorney,

         24  Legislative Affairs.  The meeting that you alluded

         25  to earlier in this hearing that was held with the
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          2  Bronx Delegation resulted in a follow- up to the

          3  request from Steve Fishner to Commissioner Kelleher,

          4  and certainly in that period it has been closely

          5  monitored, and we have increased the number of

          6  summonses dramatically.  And Inspector Romaine and

          7  the other supervisors at the Precinct have made it

          8  known that it will not be tolerated.

          9                 Additionally, I was just talking to

         10  someone on one of the Councilman's staff about

         11  specific problems and specific eyesores that could

         12  be addressed, and we're going to try to open up the

         13  dialogue.  And as the Lieutenant indicated we're not

         14  claiming that it is perfect, but we feel that there

         15  has been an improvement and we know that there is a

         16  long way to go, but we're offering this dialogue not

         17  only with any member of the Committee, but

         18  specifically with the member that I was just talking

         19  to address it to the extent that is possible.  As

         20  you acknowledged, I mean, and the professionals came

         21  in and said it's probably more cars then should be

         22  there and it's not only cars belonging to police and

         23  so on, but we certainly recognize the need to

         24  address it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, rather
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          2  than opening up a dialogue, why don't you help us by

          3  putting together something for us before Monday, and

          4  you got time today, ample time, to the Committee

          5  telling us what you have done so far and what you

          6  plan to do?  Would that be possible?

          7                 MS. RICHROATH:  Certainly, we have

          8  already written a number of letters exactly to that

          9  effect, and I certainly could write another one on

         10  behalf of the Mayor's Office - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  The Committee

         12  has gotten one.

         13                 MS. RICHROATH:  Okay, that's fine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

         15    Okay, we have a statement for the record from

         16  Barbara E. Reed, the Associate Executive Director

         17  for the Fund of Modern Courts in support.

         18                 Is there anyone present who wishes to

         19  testify who hasn't filled out a witness slip or

         20  hasn't been called?

         21                 Okay, here is what we're doing, we

         22  are recessing the meeting until 9:30 on Monday, and

         23  we will then finish - -  we are recessing the

         24  meeting, but closing the hearing, and I was going to

         25  get to the technical reasons why we say that.  We
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          2  will accept, we expect the agencies to be present to

          3  answer any further questions that may come up.  We

          4  will not hear again from residents who have

          5  testified or community folks who have testified, and

          6  we will use that hearing to vote on the entire

          7  calendar, including the Landmark designation and the

          8  other sitings that we talked about earlier in the

          9  meeting, as well as to address the issues that have

         10  been raised by Council Member Foster, and Council

         11  Member Carrion, and myself, and Council Member

         12  Wooten at that time, and we will meet again at 9:30

         13  a.m. In the Committee Room, I assume, on Monday, and

         14  at that time we look forward to a vote at that

         15  meeting.  But we would like you to come prepared

         16  with some of these answers so that we can vote,

         17  because if you don't have the answers, we may not,

         18  we may have to turn this down.

         19                 So I think some serious issues have

         20  been raised.  I think there is a spirit of

         21  cooperation that we want to participate in, but by

         22  Monday, December 6th, at 9:30 a.m. I hope we have

         23  some of these issues resolved and perhaps some more

         24  dialogue with Council Member Foster and others might

         25  be in order.
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          2                 Until then I declare the meeting

          3  recessed.

          4                 (Hearing recessed at 3:12 p.m.)

          5                 (The following testimony was read

          6  into the record).

          7

          8  Testimony of:

          9  Barbara E. Reed

         10  Associate Executive Director

         11  Fund for Modern Courts

         12

         13                 Good morning.  My name is Barbara E.

         14  Reed, and I am the Associate Executive Director of

         15  the Fund for Modern Courts. Thank you for the

         16  opportunity to speak at this hearing.

         17                 As you may already know, Modern

         18  Courts is a private, non- profit, non- partisan

         19  organization, founded in 1955, and dedicated to

         20  improving the New York State court system.  In 1975,

         21  Modern Courts established our ground- breaking

         22  citizen court monitoring program, which is built

         23  specifically around the ordinary citizen.  In

         24  counties across the State, including Bronx County,

         25  we recruit non- lawyers, who evaluate the day- to-
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          2  day operations of the courts on a regular basis.

          3  These laypersons, who now number more than 600, are

          4  in a unique position to understand the extraordinary

          5  daily difficulties that confront the ordinary people

          6  who are forced to use New York's courts.  They serve

          7  as our eyes and ears, and recommend improvements to

          8  make the courts more efficient and more user-

          9  friendly for members of their communities.  In

         10  recent years, monitors have evaluated the existing

         11  facilities of the Bronx Branch of the Criminal Court

         12  of the City of New York and the Bronx County Supreme

         13  Court, Criminal Term.  In both cases, they have

         14  found the facilities to be grossly inadequate and

         15  incapable of serving the community effectively.

         16                 In addressing specifics, I will begin

         17  with our monitors' last report on the Bronx Criminal

         18  Court, which was issued in 195, and the facts I

         19  cited will be taken from that report.  It is safe to

         20  assume that, as caseloads have increased since that

         21  time, conditions have worsened accordingly.

         22                 In 1995, there were over 60,00

         23  filings in the Bronx Branch of the Criminal Court of

         24  the City of New York.  In three short years, this

         25  figure exploded by over 33 percent, filings for 1998
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          2  totaled more than 81,500.  However, even these

          3  figures do not provide an adequate picture of the

          4  daily traffic in the Bronx Criminal Court.  In

          5  addition to the judge and court personnel required

          6  to participate in any given proceeding, other

          7  individuals who must be present may include both an

          8  assistant district attorney and a defendant, who may

          9  also be represented by an attorney; other

         10  participants, including police or correction

         11  officers and various agency representatives;

         12  witnesses; victims; and family members, who often

         13  include small children.  The problems presented by

         14  such overwhelming caseloads were not lost on our

         15  monitors.  In their 1995 report, the characterized

         16  the system in such terms as "choked" and "turnstile

         17  justice."

         18                 Our monitors have described the

         19  public areas, including the lobby and waiting areas,

         20  as "dark," "dismal," and "depressing." At least one

         21  of the elevators is usually out of service,

         22  resulting in delays and overcrowding.  Dedicated

         23  waiting areas are non- existent, forcing people to

         24  compete for space in corridors, which our monitors

         25  described "crowded," "poorly lit," and "filthy."
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          2  Due to lack of space, adversarial parties are often

          3  herded into the same cramped area.  Monitors found

          4  the restrooms "beyond description," "shabby,"

          5   "dirty," and "disgusting," as well as inaccessible

          6  for people with physical disabilities.  Indeed, the

          7  entire courthouse is inaccessible for the disabled:

          8  To enter the Criminal Court, one must walk down a

          9  flight of fifteen steps from the street level to the

         10  lobby; those who cannot negotiate these steps must

         11  enter through the Family Court, and follow what few

         12  signs exist to reach the Criminal Court lobby.

         13  Unfortunately, while the Criminal Court is open

         14  nights and weekends, the Family Court is not.  Thus,

         15  for a disabled person, entering the court outside of

         16  the weekday hours between 9:00 a.m. And 5:00 p.m. Is

         17  difficult or impossible.

         18                 The building in which the Bronx

         19  Criminal Court is located also houses the Bronx

         20  County Family Court.  A Children's Center serves the

         21  Family Court, but is not available to those who must

         22  use the Criminal Court.  Today, children who must

         23  accompany parents or guardians to the Criminal Court

         24  are forced to spend long hours waiting in crowded

         25  corridors with no seating available; once they enter
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          2  the courtroom, they may endure the trauma of court

          3  proceedings involving a parent, who may be a

          4  defendant, a witness, or a victim.

          5                 It was very clear to our monitors,

          6  when they issued their 1995 report, that upgrading

          7  housekeeping or low- level maintenance would do

          8  nothing to ameliorate these conditions.  They

          9  recognized that the Bronx Criminal Court could be

         10  made efficient and effective for the community it

         11  serves only by moving to a new facility.

         12                 Supreme Court, Criminal Term,

         13  currently housed in the Mario Merola Bronx County

         14  Building on Grand Concourse, shares its facilities

         15  with the Civil Term of Supreme Court, the Bronx

         16  Branch of the Civil Court of the City of New York,

         17  and the Surrogate's Court, as well as various

         18  government offices.  Our monitors last reported on

         19  the Criminal Term of Supreme Court in 1992, and

         20  found numerous and significant deficiencies in the

         21  facilities.

         22                 At the time of the project, there

         23  were four banks of public elevators, and at least

         24  one elevator in each bank was virtually always out

         25  of service.  There are also no elevators or other
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          2  areas dedicated for transport of prisoners:

          3  Handcuffed defendants must be paraded through public

          4  elevators, corridors, and courtroom entrances, where

          5  they may easily encounter the general public,

          6  including jurors, witnesses, and victims.  There are

          7  still no dedicated waiting areas for members of the

          8  public, who are herded into corridors where no

          9  seating is available.  No Children's Center exists

         10  in the court, nor are there any conference rooms

         11  where attorneys and clients may meet and conduct

         12  privileged conversations.

         13                 The facility proposed for 161st

         14  Street would address all of these concerns.  Simply

         15  integrating the two courts will do much to

         16  heightened efficiency and sharing of resources.

         17  Efficiency and effectiveness will be further

         18  increased by the fact that many of those agencies

         19  that appear most frequently in these two courts will

         20  also be housed in the same building.

         21                 Other improvements abound:

         22                 The number and size of courtrooms

         23  will be increased, increasing efficiency and

         24  providing adequate seating for those who must attend

         25  proceedings.
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          2                 Sizeable waiting areas will be

          3  created to accommodate the immense volume of

          4  litigants, attorneys, and witnesses who must wait

          5  for their cases to be called.

          6                 Dedicated elevators, waiting areas,

          7  and a 600- seat assembly room will be provided for

          8  jurors.

          9                 Dedicated elevators will be provided

         10  for the public, judges, and court staff, enhancing

         11  efficiency and security.

         12                 A Children's Center will serve the

         13  needs of both courts, freeing parents to concentrate

         14  on court business, secure in the knowledge that

         15  their children are supervised and safe.

         16                 Designated rooms will be provided for

         17  attorneys and clients to confer in privacy,

         18  protecting the right of attorney/client privilege.

         19                 Finally, consolidation of the

         20  Criminal Court and the Criminal Term will free a

         21  considerable amount of space for the remaining

         22  courts in the Bronx, which will significantly ease

         23  overcrowding and permit facilities and operations to

         24  be upgraded in those courts.

         25                 Modern Courts has been advised that
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          2  the opposition to this project stems largely from

          3  concerns related to parking, and from the fact that

          4  ancillary, independent projects promised six years

          5  ago, e.g., a public day care center and retail space

          6  included in the court complex itself, are no longer

          7  planned.  While these are legitimate concerns, they

          8  are also separate from the real issue before us

          9  today.  We ask the members of this Committee, and,

         10  indeed, the members of this community as a whole, to

         11  stop for a moment and reflect on that issue:

         12  Whether the citizens of the Bronx need, indeed,

         13  deserve, efficient, effective courts that have

         14  sufficient resources to administer justice fairly

         15  and properly.

         16                 The answer, of course, is a

         17  resounding "Yes!"  Every citizen of the Bronx is a

         18  potential user of these courts.  Every citizen of

         19  the Bronx is a potential juror, witness, victim, or

         20  family member of someone who must pass through the

         21  doors of these facilities.  And making these

         22  facilities accessible and effective must not be held

         23  hostage to other issues or projects, however worthy

         24  their merits might otherwise be.

         25                 It is an incontrovertible fact that
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          2  the existing facilities are utterly insufficient to

          3  handle current court traffic.  The environment in

          4  these facilities, as I have just described them to

          5  you, naturally fosters fear, frustration,

          6  resentment, and anger.  The proposed Criminal Court

          7  Complex will increase physical space, provide

          8  greater security, and provide users with those basic

          9  minimal resources necessary to human dignity.  These

         10  courts must resolve some of the greatest problems

         11  facing families and communities today.  Treating

         12  their users with respect and dignity will encourage

         13  public confidence in our justice system as a whole,

         14  and that produces benefits for all of us.  The

         15  citizens of the Bronx deserve no less.

         16                 On behalf of the Fund for Modern

         17  Courts, I thank you for this opportunity to express

         18  our support for this desperately needed court

         19  facility.  We hope that the members of the City

         20  Council Land Use Committee will show their support

         21  for the Bronx and the citizens of this community by

         22  endorsing it, as well.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 3:12 p.m.)

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 1st day of December 1999
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT WTULICH

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410
